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CORPORATE PROFILE

Dime Community Bancshares, Inc. (the “Company”) is a Delaware corporation organized in December 1995 at
the direction of the Board of Directors of The Dime Savings Bank of Williamsburg (the “Bank”) for the purpose of
acquiring all of the capital stock of the Bank issued in the conversion of the Bank from a federal mutual savings
bank to a federal stock savings bank (the “Conversion”). In connection with the Conversion, the Company issued
14,547,500 shares (par value $0.01 per share) of common stock at a price of $10.00 per share. The Company had no
operations prior to June 26, 1996.

On July 18, 1998, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger with Financial Bancorp, Inc.
(“Financial Bancorp”) the parent holding company for Financial Federal Savings Bank (“Financial Federal”),
pursuant to which Financial Bancorp will be merged with and into the Company, and Financial Federal will be
merged with and into the Bank (“Financial Acquisition”).

The Bank has been operating as a savings bank within the New York metropolitan area since 1864, and currently
has fourteen branches located throughout Nassau County and the New York City boroughs of Brooklyn, Queens
and The Bronx. The acquisition of Financial Bancorp will add four branches in Queens and one branch in Brooklyn.

The Bank’s principal business has been, and continues to be, gathering deposits from customers within its market
area, and investing those deposits primarily in multi-family and one-to-four family residential mortgage loans, mort-
gage-backed securities, and obligations of the U.S. Government and Government Sponsored Entities (“GSES”). The
Bank’s revenues are derived principally from interest on its loan and securities portfolios. The Bank’s primary
sources of funds are: deposits; loan amortization, prepayments and maturities; amortization, prepayments and
maturities of mortgage-backed and investment securities; borrowed funds; and, to a lesser extent, the sale of fixed-
rate mortgage loa~s ~o the secondary market.
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

The fiscal year ended June 30, 1998 marked the second

consecutive year of record etigs, fieled, once again, by

record mdti-ftily loan originations. The Company con-

tinued its unintirruptid record of declaring quarterly

cash dividends, and furthermore, increased the cash divi-

dend in each of the four consecutive quarters of the fiscal

year just ended. We continued the prudent execution of

the Company’s Business Plan. This Plan focuses upon the

following core activities in order to increase growth in per

share earnings and related returns:

Growth in interest-earning assets, particularly

multi-family loans,

Aggressive capital management through the

payment of cash dividends and repurchase of the

Company’s stock, and

Franchise expansion, primarily through acquisitions,

where such expansion enhances shareholder value.

Hence, during the past fiscal year, the Company ‘

experienced growth of 2470 and 2770, respectively, in

interest-earning assets and real estate loans. The

largest component of this growth was multi-family

loan originations, totaling over $293 million during

the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998.

In addition, the Company aggressively managed its cap-

ital through stock repurchases and quarterly cash divi-

dends. During the year ended June 30, 1998, a year in-

which the Company added $19.1 million of cash earnings

to stockholders’ equity, tQtal cash dividends of $2.6 million

were declared and paid, and 919,837 shares of Company

stock (7.0% of the total shares outstanding at the begin-

ning of the year) were repurchased at an aggregate cost

of $20.8 million.

The following table reflects the positive results

derived from these activities.

Annualized Growth

During the

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30,”1998 cl)

Earnings per share (diluted) 15%

Cash earnings per share (diluted) 37%

Return on equity 38%

Cash return on tangible equity 45%

(1) Note:All amountsadjustedfor non-recurringitems.

I have also previously discussed the importance of

cash earnings to the Company’s overall performance.

Cash earnings represent the actual addition of income

from operations to tangible equity. During the fiscal

year ended June 30, 1998, the Company’s cash earnings

exceeded its reported earings by 4590 — a significant

component of value for ownership of the Company.

Growth in tangible equity, as measured by cash earn-

ings, is necessary to provide for future stock repurchases

and cash dividends. Including the dividend declared in

July 1998, for the fourth fiscal quarter, the Company

paid out 31% of 1998 reported earnings, and 19% of

_1998 cash earnings, comparing favorably to industry

peers. In addition, as discussed above, the Company

continued its aggressive stock repurchase activities

duting the past fiscal year.

Finally, on July 18, 1998, Dime Community

Bancshares, Inc. announced the signing of a definitive

agreement to acquire Financial Bancorp, Inc. (“FIBC”).

FIBC is the holding company for Financial Federal

Savings Bank, which operates branches in Queens and

‘Brooklyn. This acquisition, which is expected to close in

the first quarter of 1999, will add five branches, total

deposits of approximately $230 million, and approxi-

mately 18,000 households to our franchise.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, total

deposits grew by $75 million, with much of the growth

experienced at the former branches of Pioneer Savings

Bank, which was acquired by the Company in June 1996.

‘&so during the year, we consolidated the deposits of

two of our existing North Shore, Long Island branches,

resdting from the sale of the former headquarters building

of Pioneer Savings Bank located in Roslyn, New York.

The premises, which contained a small banking facility,

were sold for an after-tax profit of $1.1 million ($0.09

per share), and brought a concurrent reduction in the
Bank’s operating expenses going forward. Reflecting

the growth of deposits, the Company’s average branch

size now stands at $74 million as of June 30, 1998,

compared to $64 million one year earlier.

Once again, I wish to thank our Directors, Officers and

Stti for .aother year of record performance, as well as

our shareholders, who continue to support the Company.

I look forward to the challenges of the upcoming year.

Sincerely,

Vincent F. Palagiano

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(Dollarsin thousands,exceptper sharedata)

The selected consolidated financial and other data of the Company set forth below is derived in part from, and shotid
be read in conjunction with, the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and Notes thereto appearing
elsewhere herein.

At or for the fiscal years ended June 30, 1998 1997 1996 (1) 1995 1994
Selected Financial Condition Data:
Total assets (2) $1,623,926 $1,315,026 $1,371,821 $662,739 $646,458
Loans, net (3) 938,046 739,858 575,874 424,680 427,960
Mortgage-backed securities (4) 4.10,589 308,525 209,941 91,548 94,356
bvestment securities (2) (4) 174,551 168,596- 392,450 101,695 86,686
Federal funds sold (2) 9,329 18,902 115,130
Goodwill

17,809 7,029
24,028 26,433 28,438

Deposits 1,038,342 963,395 950,114 554,8~ 546,7~
Borrowings 360,106 139,543 27,708 17,820 17,871
Stockholders’ equity (5) 186,349 190,889 213,071 77,067 67,919
Tangible stockholders’ equity (5) 159,558 162,361 184,188 76,321 .67,646
Selected Operating Data:
Interest income ‘-- $ 106,464 $ 89,030 $ 52,619 $49,223 $49,821
Interest expense on deposits and borrowings 56,935 41,564 23,516 18,946 17,594
Net interest income 49,529 47,466 29,103 30,277 32,227 -
Provision for losses 1,635 4,200 2,979 2,950 4,105
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 47,894 43,266 26,124 27,327 28>122
Non-interest income 7,007 4,133 1,375 1,773 2,267
Non-interest expense (6) 29,937 27,492 14,021 14,053 12,714
Income before income tax expense and cumulative

effect of changes in accounting principle 24,964 19,907 13,478 15,047 17,675
Income tax expense (7) 11,866 7,591 6,181 6,621 8,211
Income before cumulative effect of changes

in accounting principle 13,098 12,316 7,297 8,426 9,464
Cumulative effect on prior years of changing

to a different method of accounting fo~
Income taxes (S) — — --- (383)
Postretirement benefits other than pensions (9) — — (1,0;) ❑

Net income (10) $ 13,098 $ 12,316 $ 6,265 $ 8,426 $ 9,0;

(1) Sincethe acquisitionof Conestogawas completedon June 26, 1996,its contributionto the Company’searnings’and the effectuponaverage
balancecomputationsfor the fiscalyear endedJune 30, 1996werenot material.

(2)At June30, 1996,-investmentsecuritiesandfederalfundssoldinclude$125.0millionand$6.1million,respectivelyof excessproceedsresdting
fromthe oversubscriptionto the Company’sinitialpublicoffering.The excessproceedswererefundedon Jtiy 1, 1996.

(3) Loane,net, representsgrossloansless net deferredloan fees and allowancefor loan losses.
(4) Amountincludesinvestmentin FederalHomeLoanBankof NewYork(“FHLBNY”)capitalstock.
(5) Stockholders’equityandtangiblestockholders’equityincreasedfromJune 30, 1995to June 30, 1996primarilydueto the Company’sinitial

publicoffering.
(6) Excludinga non-recurringchargeof $2.0millionrelatedto the recapitalizationof the SavingsAssociationInsuranceFund(“SAIF) of the

FederalDepositInsuranceCorporation(“FDIC”),non-interestexpensewas $25.5millionduringthe year endedJune 30, 1997.
(7) Excludingnon-recufing NewYorkStateand NewYorkCity incometax recoveriesof $1.9millionand $1.0 million,respectively,incometax

expensewas $10.5millionduringthe fiscalyear endedJune 30, 1997.
(S)Pursuantto Statementof FinancialAccountingStandWdsNo. 109,“Accountingfor IncomeTaxes: (“SFAS109”),on July 1, 1993,the Bank

changedprospectivelyto the deferredmethodof accountingfor incometaxee.The effectof the adoptionof this standardis reflectedin the
selectedoperatingdataas the cumulativeeffectof adoptinga changein accountingprinciples.

(9) The BankadoptedStatementof FinancialAccountingStandardsNo. 106,‘~mployers’Accountingfor PostretirementBenefitsOtherThan
Pensions”(“SFAS106”)effectiveJuly 1, 1995.The Bankelectedto recordthe full accumulatedpostretirementbenefitobligationupon
adoption.Thisresultedin a cumtiativeeffectadjustmentof $1,032,000(afterreductionfor incometaxesof $879,000)to applyretroactively
to previousyearsthe new methodof accounting,whichis shownin the consolidatedstatementof incomefor the year endedJune30, 1996.

(10) Excludinga non-recurringchargeof $2.0 million relating to recapitalizationof the SAIF and the recoveryof NewYorkState and City
deferredincometaxespreviouslyprovided,netincomewotid havebeen$10.5million,andthe returnon averageassets,returnon average
stockholders’equity,returnon averagetangiblestockholders’equity,non-interestexpenseto averageasse~, the efficiencyratio,andearnings
per sharewodd havebeen0.S6%,5.0S%,5.S5%,2.077.,50.30%and$0.81,respectively,for theyearendedJune30, 1997.Earningsper share
informationfor the Companyfor the fiscalyears endedpriorto June 30, 1996are not meaningfulsincethe sale of the Company’scommon
stockand the mergerof ConestogaBancorp,Inc. into the Bti occurredon June 26, 1996.

(11)Withthe exceptionof end of periodratios,all ratiosarebasedon averagedailybalancesduringthe indicatedperiods.Asset QualityRatios
and RegulatoryCapitalRatiosare end of periodratios. =

(12)Incomebeforecumtiativeeffectof changesin accountingprinciplesis usedto calculatereturnon averageassetsandreturnon average
equityratios.

Notes continued on next page.
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At or for the fiscal years ended June 30, 1698 1997 1996 1995 1994
SELECTED FINANCIAL RATIOS AND OT~R DATA (Ilk
Financial and Performance Ratios:

Return on average assets (10) (12)
Return on average stockholders’ equity (10) (12)
Return on average tangible

stockholders’ equity (10) (12)
Stockholders’ equity to total assets at end of period
Tangible equity to tangible assets at end of period
Loans to deposits at end of period
Average interest rate spread (13)
Net interest margin (14)
Average interest-earning assets to average

interest-bearing liabilities
Non-interest expense to average assets (10)
Core non-interest expense to average assets (16)
Efficiency ratio (10) (15)
Core efficiency ratio (15) (16)
Dividend payout ratio

Per Share Data:
Diluted earnings per share (10)
Cash dividends per share
Book value per share
Tangible book value per share

Cash Earnings Information:
Cash return on average assets (12) (17)
Cash return on average stockholders’ equity (12) (17)
Cash return on average tangible

stockholders’ equity (12) (17)
Cash earnings per share (17)

Asset Quality Ratios and Other Data:
~tal non-performing loans (18)
Other real estate owned, net

Ratios:
Non-performing loans to total loans (18)
Non-performing loans and real estate

owned to total assets (18)
Allowance for Loan Losses to:

Non-performing loans (18)
Total loans (19)

Re@atory Capital Ratios: (Bank only)
Tangible capital
Core capital
Risk-based capital

Full Service Branches

0.9W0
7.06

8.24
11.48
9.99

91.50
2.97
3.56

114.38
2.05
1.73

56.09
47.39
21.lWO

$1.09
0.23

15.30
13.10

1.31%
10.30

12.01
$1.74

$ 884
825

0.09%

0.11

1,365.957.
1.27

8.32V0
8.32

16.58
14

1.00%
5.94

6.84
14.52
12.62
77.91

3.38
4.07

119.33
2.24
1.87

54.32
45.55

0.05%

$0.95
0.045
14.58
12.40

1.36%
8.06

9.27
$ 1.29

$3,190
1,697

0.43%

0.37

336.24%
1.43

9.86%
9.87

19.995
15

1.07%
9.07

11.84
15.53
13.72
61.43
3.85
4.41

115.68
2.06
2.06

45.98
45.98

—

N/A
$–

14.65
12.66

1.07%
9.07

9.07
N/A

$6,551
1,946

L12%

0.62

119.25%
1.34

9.49%
9.50

21.24
15

1.33%
11.50

11.53
11.63
11.53
77.47
4.51
4.91

113.15
2.21
2.21

44.11
44.11

NIA

NIA
NIA
NIA
NIA

1.33%
11.50

11.50
N/A

$5,073
4,466

1.18%

1.44

101.99%
1.20

11.53%
11.56
22.18

7

1.46%
14.66

14.66
10.51
10.47
78.94

4.80
5.12

llL50
1.97
1.97

37.63
37.63

N/A

N/A
NIA
N/A
N/A

1.4670
14.66

14.66
NIA

$6,248
8,200

1.45%

2.23

58.15%
0.84

10:47%
10.51
19.83
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(13)Averageinterestrate spreadrepresentsthe differencebetween-theweightedaverageyield on interest-earningassetsand the weighted
averagecost of interest-bearingliabilities.

(14)The net interestmarginrepresentsnet interestincomeas a percentageof averageinterest-earningassets.
(15)The efficiency ratio represents non-interest expense as a percentage of the sum of net interest income and non-interest income, excluding

any gains or losses on sales of assets.
(16) In caltiating theseratios,amortizationexpenserelatedto goodwillandtheS~ recapitiation chargeareexcludedIi-emnon-interestexpense.
(17)In calculatingtheseratios,non-interestexpenseexcludesexpensessuchas goodwillamortizationandthe after-taxeffectof compensation

expenserelatedto the Compan~sstockbenefitplanswhichare accretiveto bookvalue.Excludingthe effectsof the SAIFSpecial
Assessmentandthe recoveryof NewYorkStateand Citydeferredincometaxespreviouslyprovided,cashreturnon averageassets,cash
returnon averagestockholders’equity,cashreturnon averagetangiblestockholders’equity,andcash earningsper sharewouldhavebeen
1.21%,7.19%,8.28%and $1.15for the year endedJune 30, 1997.

(18)Non-performingloansconsistof non-accrualloans.The Companydidnot haveanyloansthatwere90 daysor morepastdueandstillaccruing
at anyof the datespresented.Non-performingloansand non-performingassetsdo not includetroubled-debtrestructurings(“TDRs”).See
“AssetQuality.”IncludingTDR’s,the ratioof non-performingloansto total loanswotid havebeen 0.51%,1.05%,1.92%,2.96%and 3.17%,
respectively,for the yearsendedJune 30, 1998,1997,1996-,1995and 1994,the ratioof non-performingassetsto totalassetswouldhave
been 0.35%,0.73%,0.96%,2.59%and 3.38%,respectively,for the yearsendedJune 30, 1998,1997, 1996,1995and 1994,and the allowance
for loan lossesas a percentageof non-performingloanswotid havebeen248,71%, 136.45%,69.61%,40.66%~d 26.58%,respectivelyfor
the years endedJune 30, 1998,1997,1996,1995and 1994.

(19)Totalloansrepresentsloans,net, plus the allowancefor loan losses.
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— CORPORATE HEADQUARTERSAND BRANCH LOCATIONS—

Corporate Headquarters of the Company and
Main Ofice of the Bank
209 Havemeyer Street, Brooklyn, NY 11211 (718) 782-6200

Dime Savings Bank of Williamsburg Branch Locations
Avenue M
1600 Avenue Mat E. 16th St., Brooklyn, NY 11230 (718) S36-5600

Bayside
61-38 Sprin#leld Blvd., Bayside, NY 11364 (718) 428-8300

Belhnore
2412 Jerusalem Ave., Bellmore, NY 11710 (516) 221-6000

Bensonhurst
1545 86th St., Brooklyn, NY 11228 (718) 331-6464 –.

Bronx
1931 Turnbull Ave., Bronx, NY 10473 (718) 597-5300 ‘-

Gates Avenue
1012 Gates Ave., Brooklyn, NY 11221 (718) 455-7700

Hillcrest
176-47 Union Tpk., Flushing, NY 11366 (718) 969-9000

Kings Highway
1902-1904 Kings Hwy., Brooklyn, NY 11229 (718) 336-7800

Marine Park
2172 Coyle St., Brooklyn, NY 11229 (718) 934-1300

Merrick
1775 Merrick Ave., Merrick, NY 11566 (516) 868-9200

Port Washington
1000 Port Washington Blvd., Port Washington, NY 11050
(516) 883-8100

Westbury
622 Old Country Rd., Westbury, NY 11590 (516) 338-7900

Whitestone
24-44 Francis Lewis Blvd., Whitestone, NY 11357 (718) 746-6500
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MANAGEMENT’SDISCUSSIONANDANWYSIS
OFFINANCIALCONDITIONAND RESULTSOF OPERATIONS

General
The primary business of the Company is the operation

of its wholly owned subsidiary, the Bank. In addition
to directing, planning and coordinating the business
activities of the Bank, the Company retained proceeds
in comection with the Conversion, which are invested
primarily in federal funds and short-term, investment
grade marketable securities.

The Bank’s principal business has been, and continues
to be, gathering deposits from customers within its
market area, and investing those deposits, primarily in
multi-family and one-to-four family residential mortgage
loans, mortgage-backed securities, and obligations of the
U.S. Government and GSES. The Bank’s revenues are
derived principally from interest on its loan and securi-
ties portfolios. The Bank’s primary sources of funds are:
deposits; loan amortization, prepayments and maturi-
ties; amortization, prepayments and maturities of mort-
gage-backed and investment securities; borrowed f~ds;
and, to a lesser extent, the sale of fixed-rate mortgage
loans to the secondary market.

The Company’s consolidated results of operations are
dependent primarily on net interest income, which is
the difference between the interest income earned on
its interest-earning assets, such as loans and securities,
and the interest expense paid on its interest-bearing lia-
bilities, such as deposits. The Company also generates
non-interest income such as service charges and other
fees. The Company’s non-interest expenses primarily
consist of employee compensation and benefits, occupancy
expenses, federal deposit insurance premiums, net costs
of other real estate owned, data processing fees and other
operating expenses. The Company’s restits of operations
are also significantly affected by general economic and
competitive conditions (particularly changes in market
interest rates), government policies, changes in accoun~
standards and were actions of regulatory agencies.

Proposed Acquisition of Financial Bancorp, Inc.
On July 18, 1998, the Company entered into the

Merger Agreement with Financial Bancorp, pursuant
to which Financial Bancorp will be merged into the
Company. The Merger Agreement provides that each
outstanding share of common stock, par value $0.01
per share, of Financial Bancorp (“Financial Bancorp
Common Stock”) will be converted into the right to
receive, at the election of the holder thereof, either
shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per share, of
the Company (“Company Common Stock”) or cash sub-
ject to the election, allocation and proration procedures
set forth in the Merger Agreement. If the Company’s
average closing price for the ten-day period ending ten
days prior to the anticipated closing of the Merger (the
“Average Closing Price”) is between $22.95 and 31:05,
the value of the consideration per share to be received
by Financial Bancorp shareholders, whether in the

form of stock or cash, will be $40.50, and 50% of the
total consideration to be paid to Financial Bancorp’s
shareholders shall consist of Company Common Stock
and 5070 shall consist of cash. If the Company’s
Average Closing Price is greater than $31.05 or less than
$22.95, then the value of the consideration per share to
be received by Financial Bancorp shareholders in the
Merger will be adjusted, and the percentage of the total
consideration consisting of the Company’s Common
Stock and cash will change, all as set forth in the Merger
Agreement. If the Company Common Stock has a mar-
ket value during the pricing period of less than or equal
to $20.25, Financial Bancorp has the right to termi-
nate the Merger Agreement unless the Company
agrees to increase the per share consideration to
Financial Bancorp’s shareholders to at least $38.12.

The Financial Acquisition is subject to (i) approval by
the shareholders of Financial Bancorp, (ii) approval of the
OTS and (iii) satisfaction or waiver of certain other condi-
tions. Financial Bancorp is a unitary savings bank hold-
ing company for its wholly owned subsidiary, Financial
Federal, a federal savings bank.

Management Strategy
The Bank’s primary management strategy is to increase

the Bank’s household and deposit market shares in the
communities it serves, either through acquisitions or
purchases of deposits, or by direct marketing, and to
increase its origination of, and investment in, mortgage
loans, with an emphasis on multi-family loans. Multi-
family lending is a significant business of the Bank and
reflects the fact that much of the housing in the Bank’s
primary lending area is multi-family housing. The
Company also strives to provide a stable source of liquid-
ity and earnings through the purchase of investment
grade securities; seeks to maintain the Bank’s asset
quality for loans and other investments; and uses appro-
priate portfolio and assefliability management tech-
niques in an effort to manage the effects of interest rate
volatility on the Bank’s profitability and capital.

Franchise Expansion. On June 26, 1996, the Bank
completed the acquisition of Conestoga Bancorp, Inc.
~’.con~stoga”) resulki.mg in the merger of Conestoga’s
wholly owned subsidiary, Pioneer Savings Bank, F.S.B.
(“Pioneer”) with and into the Bank, with the Bank as
the resulting financial institution (the “Conestoga
Acquisition”). The Conestoga Acquisition was accounted
for in the Company’s financial statements using the
purchase method of accounting. Under the purchase
method of accounting, the acquired assets and liabili-
ties of Conestoga are recognized at their fair value as
of the date of the Conestoga Acquisition. Shareholders
of Conestoga were paid approximately $101.3 million
in cash, resulting in goodwill of $28.4 million, which
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is being amortized on a straight-line basis over a
twelve-year period. Since the Conestoga Acqtisitlqn ~
occurred on June 26, 1996, its impact upon the Company’s
consolidated results of operations for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1996 was minimal. The fill effect of the
Conestoga Acquisition is reflected in the Company’s con-
solidated results of operations for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1997, as well as in the consolidated statements
of financial condition as of June 30, 1997 and 1996.

On July 18, 1998, the Company entered into the
Merger Agreement, which provides for the acquisition
of Financial Bancorp and its wholly owned subsidiary,
Financial Federal. The Financial Acquisition, which is
expected to close during the first quarter of 1999, will
add five retail branches to the Bank. As of June 30,
1998, these branches totaled $229.0 million in deposits.

The Company continues to evaluate acquisition and
other growth opportunities as they become available.
Additionally management plans to supplement this strati
egy with direct marketing efforts designed to increase
customer household and/or deposit balances and the nu-
ber of the Bank’s services used per household among its
existing customers.

Loan Originations with an Emphasis on Multi-family
Lending. Management believes that multi-family loans
provide advantages as portfolio investments. First, they
provide a higher yield than single-family loans or invest-
ment securities of comparable maturities or terms to
repricing. Second, the Company’s market area generally
has provided a stable flow of new and refinanced multi-
family loan originations. In addition to its emphasis on
multi-family lending, the Company will continue to
market and originate residential first mortgage loans
secured primarily by owner-occupied, one-to-four family
residences, including condominiums and cooperative
apartments. Third, origination and processing costs for
the Company’s multi-family loans are lower per thou-
sand dollars of originations than comparable single-
family costs. In addition, to address the higher credit
risk associated with multi-family lending, management
has developed what it believes are reliable underwrit-
ing standards for loan applications in order to maintain
a consistent credit quality for new loans.

Capital Leverage Strategy. As a result of the Comlagi’..
initial public offering in June 1996, the Bank’s capital
level si~ificantly exceeded all regulatory require_me&s.
A portion of the “excess” capital generated by the initial
public offering has been deployed through the use of a
capital leverage strategy whereby the Bank invests in
high quality mortgage-backed securities (“leverage -
assets”) funded by short-term borrowings from various
third party lenders. The capital leverage strategy gener-
ates additional earnings for the Company by virtue of a
positive interest rate spread between the yield on the
leverage assets and the cost of the borrowings. Shce the
average term to maturity of the leverage assets exceeds

that of the borrowings used to fund their purchase, the
net interest income earned on the leverage strategy
would be expected to decline in a rising interest rate
environment. See “Discussion of Market Risk.” To date,
the capital leverage strategy has been undertaken in
accordance with limits established by the Board of
Directors, aimed at enhancing profitability under mod-
erate levels of interest rate exposure. Assets at June 30,
1997 include $96.3 million related to the capital lever-
age program, which increased to $266.4 million as of
June 30, 1998.

In addition to the capital leverage strategy, the Bank
undertook an additional $40.3 million in medium-term
borrowings from the FHLBNY during the year ended
June 30, 1998 in order to fmd mtiti-family and underly-
ing cooperative loan originations. The Company earns a
net interest rate spread between the yield on the multi-
family and underlying cooperative loans and the cost
of the borrowings.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
The Company’s primary sources of funds are deposits,

proceeds from principal and interest payments on
loans, mortgage-backed securities and investments,
borrowings, and, to a lesser extent, proceeds from the
sale of freed-rate mortgage loans to the secondary mort-
gage market. While maturities and scheduled amortiza-
tion of loans and investments are a predictable source
of funds, deposit flows, mortgage prepayments and
mortgage loan sales are influenced by interest rates,
economic conditions and competition.

The primary investing activities of the Company are
the origination of mdti-family and one-to-four family
mortgage loans, and the purchase of mortgage-backed
and other securities. During the year ended June ’30,
1998, the Bank’s loan originations totaled $326.3 million
compared to $264.8 million for the year ended June 30,
1997. “Purchases of mortgage-backed and other securities
totaled $432.6 million for the year ended June 30, 1998
compared to $362.9 million for-the year ended June 30,
1997. These activities were funded primarily by princi-
pal repayments on loans and mortgage-backed securi-
ties, maturities of investment securities, and borrowings
by means of repurchase agreements and FHLB Advances.
Principal repayments on loans and mortgage-backed
securities totaled $210.9 million during the year ended
June 30, 1998, compared to $132.4 million for the year
ended June 30, 1997. Maturities of investment securi-
ties totaled $73.4 million and $378.8 million, respec-
tively, during the fiscal years ended June 30, 1998 and
1997. Loan and security sales, which totaled $116.9 mil-
lion and $47.2 million, respectively during the fiscal
years ended June 3-0, 1998 and 1997, provided some
additional cash flows.

Deposits increased $74.9 million and $13.3 million
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998 and 1997,
respectively. Deposit flows are affected by the level of
interest rates, the interest rates and products offered
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by Iocal competitors, and other factors. Certificates of
deposit which are scheduled to mature in one year or
less from June 30, 1998 totaled $406.4 million. Based
upon the Company’s current pricing strategy and
deposit retention experience, management believes that
a significant portion of such deposits will remain with
the Company. Net borrowings increased $220.6 million
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, with the
majority of this growth experienced in securities sold
under agreement to repurchase (“Repo”) transactions,
consistent with the Company’s capital leverage strategy.

Stockholders’ equity declined $4.5 million during the
year ended June 30, 1998. During the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1998, the Company repurchased 919,837 _
shares of its common stock into treasury (the “Treasury
Repurchases”). The aggregate cost of the fieasury-
Repurchases was $20.8 million, at an average price_of
$22.58 per share. Offsetting the impact of the. Treas~
Repurchases was net income of $13.1 million and amorti-
zation of the Company’s Employee Stock Ownership Plm
(“ESOP”) and Recognition and Retention Plan (“RRP”) of
$5.4 million during the fiscal year ended June 30,1998.

In June 1997, the Company commenced payment of
regular quarterly cash dividends, the per share amount
of which has been increased for each successive divi-
dend to date. During the year ended June 30, 1998,-the
Company declared and paid three cash dividends totaltig
$2.6 million, or $0.23 per outstanding common share,.
on the respective dates of record. On July 16, 1998, the
Company declared a cash dividend of $0.10 per common
share to all shareholders of record on July 31, 1998. This
dividend was paid on August 13, 1998.

The Bank is required to maintain a minimum average
daily balance of liquid assets as defined by Office of
Thrift Supervision re~ations. The minimum reqtired
liquidity ratio is currently 4.0%. At March 31, 1998, the
Bank’s liquidity ratio was 14.2%. The levels of the Bank’s
sho~term liquid assets are dependent on the Bank’s
operating, financing and investing activities during any
given period.

The Bank monitors its liquidity position on a daily
basis. Excess short-term liquidity is invested in overnight
federal funds sales and various money market invest-
ments. In the event that the Bank should require funds
beyond its ability to generate them internally, additional
sources of fimds are available through the use of the
Bank’s $215.1 million borrowing limit at the FHLB~.
At June 30, 1998, the Bank had $215.1 million in short-
and medium-term borrowings outstanding at the
FHLBNY, comprised of outstanding Advances of
$103.5 million and securities sold under agreements
to repurchase of $111.6 million.

At June 30, 1998, the Bank was in compliance
with all applicable_yegulatory capital requirements.
Tangible capital totaled $131.2 million, or 8.32% of
total tangible assets, exceeded a 1.50% regulatory
requirement; core capital, at 8.3290 of adjusted assets,
exceeded the required 3.070 regulatory minimum; and

total risk-based capital, at 16.58% of risk-weighted
assetsz exceeded the 8.070 regulatory minimum. In
addition, at June 30, 1998, the Bank was considered
“well-capitalized” for all regulatory purposes.

Discussion of Market Risk
As a ~nancial institution, the Company’s primary

component of market risk is interest rate volatility.
Fluctuations in interest rates will ultimately impact
both the level of income and expense recorded on a
large portion of the Bank’s assets and liabilities, and
the market value of all interest-earning assets, other
than those which possess a short term to maturity.
During the year ended June 30, 1998, the Company
operated under a “flat yield curve” interest rate envi-
ronment, which features little discrepancy in rates
offered.on short-term and long-term investments.
Under a flat yield curve environment, financial institu-
tions often experience both increased interest rate com-
petition related to loan originations, and above-average
prepayment activities related to mortgage-backed
investments, both of which adversely impact long-term
profitability. The flat yield curve environment experi-
enced during the 1998 fiscal year was a primary factor
in the reduction of the Company’s interest rate spread
compared to the prior fiscal year. Recent troubled eco-
nomic conditions in several nations throughout Europe,
Asia, and South and Central America have created
interest rate volatility for U.S. government and agency
obligations. As a result of this interest rate volatility,
the U.S. stock market, especially amongst financial
institutions, has experienced even greater volatility
subsequent to June 30, 1998. It is unclear at this time
what, if any, effect these conditions will have on the
local and regional economy, and real estate market.

Since all of the Company’s interest-bearing liabilities
and virtually all of the Company’s interest-earning
assets are located at the Bank, virtually all of the
Company’s interest rate risk exposure lies at the B“ank
level. As a result, all significant interest rate risk man-
agement procedures are performed at the Bank level.
Based upon the Bank’s nature of operations, the Bank
is not subject to foreign currency exchange or commodity
price risk. The Bank’s real estate loan portfolio, concen-
trated primarily within New York City, is subject to
risks associated with the local economy. The Company
doei not own any trading assets. See “Asset Quality.”
The Company did not engage in any hedging transac-
tions utflizing derivative instmments (such as interest
rate swaps and caps) during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1998, and did not have any such hedging
transactions in place at June 30, 1998. In the future,
the Company may, with Board approval, engage in
hedging transactions utilizing derivative instruments.

The Company’s interest rate management strategy is
designed to stabilize net interest income and preserve
capital over a broad range of interest rate movements
and has three primary components:
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Assets. The Company’s largest single asset type is the
multi-family real estate loan. Multi-family loans typi-
cally carry a shorter average term to maturity than
one-to-four family residential loans, thus significantly
reducing the overall level of interest rate risk. In addi-
tion, in order to manage interest rate risk, manage-
ment emphasizes origination of adjustable rate
multi-family loans. Due to the flat yield curve environ-
ment, as evidenced by a relatively low level of medium-
and long-term interest rates, the Company faced
increased consumer demand for freed rate multi-family
loan originations. However, while down from the prior
year level of 75%, approximately 60% of multi-family
loans originated during the year ended June 30, 1998,
were adjustable rate, with repricing typically occurring
after five years. In addition, management has sought to
include various types of adjustable-rate single-family
(including cooperative apartment) whole loans and
adjustable and floating-rate investment securities in its
portfolio, which generally have repricing terms of three
years or less. At June 30, 1998, adjustable-rate whole
loans totaled $617.2 million, or 38.0% of total assets,
and adjustable-rate investment securities (CMO’S,
REMIC’S and mortgage-backed securities issued by
GSES) totaled $301.3 million, or 18.6% of total assets.

Deposit Liabilities. The Bank, a traditional community-
based savings bank, is largely dependent upon its base
of competitively priced core deposits (consisting of all
deposits except certificates of deposit) to provide stabfii~
on the liability side of the balance sheet. The Bank h=
retained many loyal customers over the years through a
combination of quality service, convenience, and a stable
and experienced staff. Core deposits, at June 30, 1998,
were $426.0 million, or 41.03% of total deposits. The bal-
ance of certificates of deposit as of June 30, 1998 was”
$612.3 million, or 58.97% of total deposits, of which $206.0
million, or 33.6% of total certificates of deposits, mature
after one year. Depending on market conditions, manage-
ment prices its certificates of deposit in an effort to
encourage the extension of the average maturities of
deposit liabilities beyond one year. Over the twelve-month
period ending June 30, 1998, the Bank experienced a
strong retention rate on maturing certificates of deposit.

Deposit Distribution
(as of June 30, 1998)

k ■ 2.9%,– MoneyMarket -

.)

($30.6million)=
—, ❑ 3.6%- Checking($37.0million)..-:.—–-

❑ 32.8%- Savings($340.5Won)

■ 1.7%- N.O.W./SuperN.O-W.
($17.9million)

■ 59.0%– Certificatesof Deposit
($612.3million)

TotalDeposits:$1.038billion

Wholesale Funds. The Bank does not accept brokered
deposits as a source of funds and has no plans to do so
in the future. However, the Bank is a member of the
FHLBNY which provides it with a borrowing line equal
to $215.1 million. From time to time, the Bank till bor-
row from the FHLBNY for various purposes. At June 30,
1998, the Bank had outstanding borrowings of $215.1
million with the FHLBNY.

The Bank actively manages interest rate risk through
the use of a simulation model which measures the sensi-
tivity of future net interest income and the net portfolio
value to changes in interest rates. In addition, the Bank
regularly monitors interest rate sensitivity through GAP
Analysis, which measures the terms to maturity or next
repricing date of interest-earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities.

GAP Analysis
The following table sets forth the amounts of the

Company’s consolidated interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities, outstanding at June 30,
1998, which are anticipated, based upon certain
assumptions, to reprice or mature in each of the future
time periods shown. Except as stated below, the amount
of assets and liabilities shown which reprice or mature
during a particular period were determined based on
the earlier of term to repricing or the term to repayment
of the asset or liability. The table is intended to provide
an approximation of the projected repricing of assets
and liabilities at June 30, 1998 on the basis of contrac-
tual maturities, anticipated prepayments, and sched-
uled rate adjustments within a three-month period
and subsequent selected time intervals. For purposes
of presentation in the following table, the Company
utilized the national deposit decay rate assumptions
published by the OTS as of December 31, 1992 (the
latest available), which for savings accounts, NOW and
Super NOW accounts and money market accounts in
the one year or less category were 14%, 37% and 79%,
respectively. The loan amounts in the table reflect
principal balances expected to be redeployed and/or
repriced as a result of contractual amortization and
anticipated early payoffs of adjustable- and freed-rate
loans, and as a result of contractual rate adjustments
on adjustable-rate loans. The amounts attributable to
mortgage-backed securities reflect principal balances
expected to be redeployed and/or repriced as a result
of anticipated principal repayments, and as a result
of contractual rate adjustments on adjustable-rate
mortgage-backed securities.
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Morethan Morethan Morethan Morethan Non-
3 Months 3 Months 6 Months 1Year 3 Years Morethan interest-

At June 30, 1998 or Less to 6 Months to 1Year to 3 Years to 5Years 5Years bearing Total
(Dollarsin thousands)

Interest-earning assets (1)
Mortgagesandotherloans $ 65,221 $ 60,;; ‘~ 56,574 $223,924 $246,014 $297,644 $ – $ 950,121
Investmentsecurities 26,168 5,485 52,270 72,699 6,925 163,797
Mortgage-backedsecurities(2)

—
91,073 70,872 55,153 108,077 43,486 41,928 410,589

Federalfi.mdssold
—

9,329 — — 9,329
FHLBcaDitalstock

— — — —
10.754 — — — — — — -10.754

Totalinterest-earningassets 202,545 131,866 117,212 384,271 362,199 346,497 — 1,544,590
Less:
Allowance for loan losses — — — — — — (12,075) (12,075)
Net interest-earning assets 202,545 131,866 117,212 384,271 362,199 346,497 (12,075) 1,532,515
Non-interest-earningassets 18,008 — — — —— — 73,403 91,411
Total assets $220,553 $131,866 $ l17,2i2 $384,271 $362,199 $346,497 $61,328 $1,623,926
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Savings accounts $ 11,917 $ 11,917 $ 23,834 $ 76,249 $56,394 $160,170 $ – $ 340,481
NOWand SuperNOWaccounta 1,658 1,658 3,316 6,072 1,625 3,598 17,927
Money market accounts

—
6,037 6,037 .12,074 3,363 1,601 1,455 .30,567

Certificates of deposit
—

139,108 103,472 163,791 188,800 16,928 229 — 612,328
Borrowed finds 144,455 23,598 — 44,450 69,000 78,603 360,106
Interest-beting escrow

.
— — —- — . 4,294 — 4,294

~tal intere&beeringliabilities 303,175 146,682 203,015 318,934 145,548 248,349 1,365,703
Checking accounts

—
. — — 37,039 37,039

Other non-interest-
— — —

bearing liabilities 12,062 — — — -. 22,773 34,835
Stockholders’equity

-
— — — — - — 186,349 186,349

Total liabilities and
stockholders’ sqnity $315,237 $146,682 $203,015 $318,934 $145,548 $248,349 $246,161 $1,623,926

Interest sensitivity gap
per period $(100,630) $ (14,816) $ (85,803) $ 65,337 $216,651 $98,148 —

Cumtiative interest
sensitivity gap $(100,630) $(115,446) $(201,249) $(135,912) $80,739 ‘ $178,887 —

Cumdative interest
sensitivity gap as a
percent of total assets (6.20)% (7.11)% (12.39)% (8.37)% 4.97% 11.02%

Cumulative total intereat-
.

earning assets as a percent
of cumulative total interest-
besring liabilities 66.81% 74.34% 69.17% 86.01% 107.23% 113.1090 —

(1) Interest-earning assets are included in the period in which the balances are expected to be redeployed and/or repriced as result of anticipated
prepayments, scheduled rate adjustments, and contractual maturities.

(2) Based upon historical repayment experience.

The Company’s balance sheet is primarily comprised of
assets which mature or reprice within five years, with a
si&cant portion mattig or repricing within one year.
In addition, the Company’s deposit base is comprised pri-
marily of savings accounts, and cert$cates of deposit
with maturities of three years or less, representing 11.990
and 57.370, respectively, of total deposits at June 30,
1998. Aa a restit, at June 30, 1998, the Company’s inter-
est-beating liabilities maturing or repricing wittin one
year totaled $652.9 million, while interest-earning assets
maturing or repricing witbin one year totaled $451.6 mil-
lion, resulting in a negative one-year interest sensitivity
gap of $201.2 million, or 12.4% of total assets. In compar-
ison, at June 30, 1997, the Company had a negative one-
year interest sensitivity gap of $98.5 million, or 7.5% of
total assets. The Company’s estimate of repricing liabili-
ties for selected deposit types which do not carry contrac-
tual maturities, such as savings accounts, is based upon
the decay rate tables published by the OTS.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of
analysis presented in the foregoing table. For example,
although certain assets and liabilities may have similar
maturities or periods to repricing, they may not react

correspondingly to changes in market interest rates.
Also, the interest rates on certain types of assets and lia-
bilities may fluctuate with changes in market interest
rates, while interest rates on other types of assets may
lag behind changes in market rates. Additionally, cer-
tain assets, such as adjustable-rate loans, have features,
like annual and lifetime rate caps, which restrict changes
in interest rates both on a short-term basis and over the
life of the asset. Further, in the event of a change in inter-
est rates, prepayment and early withdrawal levels
would likely deviate from those assumed in the table.
Finally, the ability of certain borrowers to make sched-
uled payments on their adjustable-rate loans may
decrease in the event of an interest rate increase.

Under interest rate scenarios other than that which
existed on June 30, 1998, the gap ratio for the Company’s
assets and liabilities could differ substantially based
upon different assumptions about how core deposit decay
rates and loan prepayments wotid change. For example,
the Company’s interest rate risk management model
assumes that in a rising rate scenario, by paying competi-
tive rates on non-core deposits, a large share of core
deposits will transfer to certificates of deposit and be
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retained, although at higher cost to the Company, Also,
loan and mortgage-backed security prepayment rates
would be expected to slow, as borrowers postpone property
sales or loan refinanctigs until rates again decline.

Interest Rate Risk Exposure Compliance
Increases in the level of intirest rates dso may adversely

affect the fair value of the Company’s securities and other
earning assets. Generally, the fair value of fixed-rate
instruments fluctuates inversely with changes in interest
rates. As a result, increases in interest rates codd result in
decreases in the fair value of the Compan~s interest-ea-
ing assets, which could adversely tiect the Company’s
resdts of operations if sold, or, in the case of interest-eti-
ing assets classified as available for sale, the Company’s
stockholders’ equity, if retained. Under Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (“G=), changes in the unrealized
gains and losses, net of taxes, on securities classified
as available for sale will be reflected in the Company’s
stockholders’ equity. As of June 30, 1998, the Compan~s
securities portfolio included $449.6 million in securities

classified as available for sale. Due to the magnitude of
the Company’s holdings of securities available for sale,
changes in interest rates could produce significant
changes in the value of such securities and could produce
significant fluctuations in the stockholders’ equity of the
Company. The Company does not own any trading assets.

On a quarterly basis, an interest rate risk exposure
compliance report is prepared and presented to the
Company’s Board of Directors. This report, prepared in
accordance with Thrift Bulletin #13 issued by the OTS,
presents an analysis of the change in net interest income
and net portfolio value resulting from an increase or
decrease in the level of interest rates. All changes are
measured as percentage changes from the values of pro-
jected net interest income and net projected portfolio
value in the flat rate scenario. The calcdated estimates of
change in net interest income and net portfolio value are
compared to current limits established by management
and approved by the Board of Directors. The following is a
summary of the Company’s interest rate exposure report
as of June 30, 1998:

Percentage Change In
Net Interest Income Net Portfolio Value

Change in Interest Rate Limit Projected Change Limit Projected Change
-400 Basis Points -50.00% -5.43% -50.00Y0 17.36%
-300 Basis Points -37.50 1.89 -37.50 16.72
-200 Basis Points -25.00 6.11 -25.00 13.72
-100 Basis Points -S2.50 6.87 -12.50 6.99
Flat Rate (1) — _—..
+100 Basis Points =12.; -9.37 -12.; -7.61
+200 Basis Points .-=25.00 -19.04 -25.00 -18.40
+300 Basis Points .-37.50 -29.80 -37.50 -30.38
+400 Basis Points -50.00% -41.01% -50.00% -42.29%

The model utilized to create the report presented above
makes various estimates at each level of interest rate
change regarding cash flows from principal repayments
on loans and mortgage-backed securities and/or call activ-
ity on investment securities. Actual results could differ
significantly from these estimates which would restit b
significant differences in the calculated projected change.
In addition, the limits stated above do not necessarily
represent the level of change under which management
wodd undertake specific measures to realign its portfolio
in order to reduce the projected level of change.

Asset Quality
The Company’s real estate loan servicing policies and

procedures require that the Company initiate contact with
a delinquent borrower as soon as possible after the pay-
ment is late ten days. Generally, the policy calls for a late
notice to be sent ten days after the due date of the pay-
ment. If payment has not been received within 30 days of
the due date, a letter is sent to the borrower. Thereafter,
periodic letters and phone calls are placed to the borrower
until payment is received. In addition, Company policy
calls for the cessation of interest accruals on loans delin-
quent 90 days or more. When contact is made with the
borrower at any time prior to foreclosure, the Company
will attempt to obtain the fll payment due, or work out a
repayment schedtie with the borrower to avoid foreclo-
sure. Generally, foreclosure proceedings are initiated by
the Company when a loan is 90 days past due. As soon as
practicable after initiating foreclosure proceedings on a

loan, the Company prepares an estimate of the fair value
of the underlying collateral. It is the Compan~s general
policy to dispose of properties acquired though foreclo-
sure or deeds in lieu thereof as quickly and as prudently
as possible in consideration of market conditions, the
physical condition of the property and other mitigat~g
conditions. If a foreclosure action is instituted and the
loan is not brought current, paid in ti, or refianced
before the foreclosure sale, the real property securing the
loan is generally either sold at foreclosure or sold subse-
quently by the Company as soon thereafter as practicable.

Management reviews delinquent loans on a periodic
basis and reports monthly to the Board of Directors
regarding the status of all delinquent and non-accrual
loans in the Company’s portfolio. The Company retains
outside counsel experienced in foreclosure and bankruptcy
procedures to institute foreclosure and other actions on
the Company’s delinquent loans. It is the policy of the
Company to initiate foreclosure proceedings after a loan
becomes 90 days past due. As soon as practicable titer
initiating foreclosure proceedings on a loan, the Company
prepares an estimate of the fair value of the underlying
collateral. It is the Company’s general policy to dispose of
properties acquired through foreclosure or deeds in lieu
thereof as quickly and as prudently as possible in consid-
eration of market conditions, the physical condition of the
property, and any other mitigating conditions.

The continued adherence to these procedures, as well
as a strong local real estate market, resulted in a signif-
icant drop in problem loans in the Company’s portfolio,
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particularly multi-family and underlying cooperative
loans, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998.. _
Primarily, these” declines reflect satisfaction of loans out
of successti foreclosure proceedings, as well as the move-
ment of loans to other real estate followed by the success-
fi disposition of the underlying prope~ies, Evidenceof
this is reflected in declines in both non-performing loans
and loans delinquent 60-89 days. Non-performing loans
totaled $884,000 at June 30, 1998, as compared to $3.2
million at June 30, 1997. The Company had 35 loans
totaling $328,000 delinquent 60–89 days at June 30,
1998, as compared to 33 such delinquent loans totaling
$603,000 at June 30, 1997. The Company has experi-
enced a shift in the composition of its 60–89 day delin-
quencies from its conventional mortgage portfolio, which
loans typically carry larger average balances, to smaller
balance FMA insured ad consumer lofis. As a result,
the number of delinquent loans has not declined despite
the decline in overall dollar level.

Under GAAP, the Company is required to account for
certain loan modifications or restructurings as “troubled-
debt restructurings.” In general, the modification or
restructuring of a debt constitutes a troubled-debt restruc-
tig tithe Company for economic or legal reasons relakd
to the borrower’s financial ~culties, grants a conce~sion
to the borrower that the Company wotid not otherwise
consider. Debt restructurings or loan modifications for a
borrower do not necessarily always constitute troubled-
debt restructurings, however, and troubled-debt restruc-
turings do not necess~y restit in non-accrual loans. The
Company had three loans classified as troubled-debt
restructurings at June” 30, 1998, totaling $3.9 @on,=md
all are currently performing according to their restruc-
tured terms. The largest restructured debt, a $2.7 million
loan secured by a mortgage on an underlying cooperative
apartment building located in Forest Hills, New York, was
originated in 1987. The loan was first restructured in
1988, and again in 1994. The current regulations of the
OTS require that troubled-debt restructurings remain
classified as such until either the loan is repaid or ret~s
to its original terms. The Company did not have any new
loan restructurings during the fiscal year ended June 30,

1998. All three troubled-debt restructurings as of June 30,
1998 are on accrual status as they have .been perform-
ing in accordance with the restructuring terms for over
one year.

Pursuant to Company guidelines for determining and
measuring impairment in loans within the meaning of
SFAS 114, in the event the carrying balance of the loan,
including all accrued interest, exceeds the estimate of
fair value, the loan is considered to be impaired and a
reserve is established. The recorded investment in loans
deemed impaired was approximately $3.1 million as of
June 30, 1998, compared to $4.3 million at June 30, 1997,
and the average balance of impaired loans was $3.8 mil-
lion for the year ended June 30, 1998 compared to $4.7
million for the year ended June 30, 1997. The impaired
portion of these loans is represented by specific reserves
totaling $23,000 allocated within the allowance for loan
losses at June 30, 1998. At June 30, 1998, one loan total-
ing $2.7 million, was deemed impaired for which “no
reserves have been provided. This loan, which is included
in troubled-debt restructurings at June 30, 1998, has
performed in accordance with the provisions of the
restructuring agreement signed in October 1995. The
loan has been retained on accrual status at June 30,
1998. Generally, the Company considers non-performing
loans to be impaired loans. However, at June 30,”1998,
approximately $428,000 of one-to-four family, cooperative
apartment and consumer loans on nonaccrual status are
not deemed impaired. &l of these loans have outstanding
balances less than $227,000, and are considered a homo-
geneous loan pool which are not required to be evaluated
for tipairment. See ~~otes to Consolidated Financial
Statements” for a further discussion of impaired loans.

The balance of other real estate owned (“OREO”) was
$825,000, consisting of 14 properties, at June 30,1998
compared to $1.7 million, consisting of 22 properties, at
June 30, 1997. During the year ended June 30, 1998, ““ --”
$779,000 in loans weretransferred into OREO. Offsetting
this addition were OREO sales and charge-offs of $1.7
million during the year ended June 30, 1998. All charge-
offs were recorded against the allowance for losses on reai
estate owned, which was $164,000 as of June 30, 1998. --

The following table sets forth information regarding the Company’s non-performing loans, non-performing assets,
impaired loans and troubled-debt restructurings at the dates indicated.

At Year Ended June 30, 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994

Non-performing loans
One-to-four family

(Doll~~ltoueands)
$ 471 $1,123 $ 572 $1,276

Multi-family and underlying cooperative 236 1,613 4:734 3,97s 4,363
Non-residential — — —
Cooperative apartment

—
133 415 .668 523 6&

Other 44 39 — — —..

Total non-performing loans 884 3,190 6,551 5,073 6,248
Other Real Estate Owned 825 1,697 1,946 4,466 .8,200
Total non-performing assets $1,709 $4,887 $8,497 $9,539 $14,448
Troubled-debt restructurings $3,971 $4,671 $4,671 $7,651 $7,421
Total non-performing assets and troubled-debt restructurings $5,6S0 $9,55s $13,168 $17,190 $21,869
Impaired loans (1) $3,136 $4,294 $7,419 NIA NIA
Ratios

Total non-performing loans to total loans 0.09% 0.43% L12% 1.18% L45yo
Total non-performing assets to total assets 0.11 0.37 0.62. 1.44 2.23
Total non-performing assets and

troubled-debt restructurings to total assets 0.35 0.73 0.96 2.59 3.38

(1) The Bank adopted SFA8 114 effective July 1, 1995. Impaired loans were not measured prior to adoption.
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Analysis of Net Interest Income
The Company’s profitability, like that of most finan-

cial institutions, is dependent to a large extent upon its
net interest income, which is the difference between its
interest income on interest-earning assets, such as loans
and securities, and its interest expense on interest-bear-
ing liabilities, such as deposits and borrowings. Net
interest income depends upon the relative amounts of
interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities
and the interest rates earned or paid on them.

For the Years Ended June 30~ 1998

The following table sets forth certain information relat-
ing to the Company’s consolidated statements of opera-
tions for the years ended June 30, 1998, 1997 and 1996,
and reflects the average yield on assets and average cost
of liabilities for the periods indicated. Such yields and
costs are derived by dividing income or expense by the
average balance of assets or liabilities, respectively, for
the periods shown. Average balances are derived from
average daily balances. The yields and costs include
fees which are considered adjustments to yields.

1997 1996

Average Average Average
Average Yieldl Average Yield/
Balance Interest cost Balance Interest cost

(Dollars in thousands)
Assets:
Interest-earning assets:
Real estate loans (1)
Other loans
Investment securities (2) (3)
Mortgage-backed securities (2)
Federal funds sold

Total interest-earning assets

Non-interest-earning assets

Total assets

$ 837,755 $69,824
5,393 487

164,265 10,798
349,910 23,463

35,540 1,892

8.33% $ 642,913 $54,965
9.03 5,444 460
6.67 215,809 13,654
6.71 261,275 17,704
5.32 40,349 2,247.—

1,392,863 $106,464

66.008

$1,458,871

Liabilities and
stockholders’ equity

Interest-bearing liabilities:
NOW, Super NOW and Money

market accounts $ 48,556
Savings accounts 338,062
Certificates of deposit 594,098
Mortgagors’ escrow 4,700
Borrowed funds 232.385

$ 1,131
7,628

34,174
94

13,908
Total interest-bearing liabilities 1,217,801 $56,935
Checking accounts 31,457
Othernon-intereshbearingliabilities 24,097

Total liabilities 1,273,355
Stockholders’ equity 185,516

!Ibtal liabilities and
stockholders’ equity $1,458,S71

Net interest income/
interest rate spread (4) $49,529

Net interest-earning assetsl
net interest margin (5) $ 175,062

Ratio of interest-earning assets
to interest-bearing liabilities

7.64% 1,165,790 $89,030

64,148—
$1,229,938

2.33% $ 55,327
2.26 349,821
5.75 515,542
2.00 3,792
5.98 52,495

4.68% 976.977

$ 1,404
8,192

28,869
79

3,020

$41.564

27,653
18,131

1,022,761
207,177

$1.229.938

2.97% $47,466

3;56% $ 188,813

114.38%

8.55%
8.45
6.33
6.78
5.57

7.64%

2.54%
2,34
5.60
2.08
5.75

4.26%

3.38%

4.07%

119.33%

Average Yiefti
Balance Interest cost

$435,948
3,497

107,206
89,001
23.904

$39,314
340

5,738
5,927
1.300

659,556 $52,619
20,424

$679.980

$30,759
232,631
285,524

3,371
17,854

570.139

$ 634
5,789

16,013
72

1,008

$23.516

11,646
17,718

599,503
80,477

$679,980

$29.103

$89,417

9.02%
9.72
5.35
6.66
5.44

7.98%

2.06%
2.49
5.61
2.14
5.65

4.13%

3.85%

4.41%

115.68%

(1) In computingtheaveragebalanceof loans,non-accmalloanshavebeenincluded.Interestincomeincludesloanservicingfeesas definedunderSFA891.
(2)Includessecuritiesclassified“availableforsale.”
(3) Includesinterest-bsaringdepositsin otherbanksandFHLBstock.
(4)Netinterestratespreadrepresentsthedifferencebetweentheaverageyieldoninterest-earningassetsandtheaveragecostof interest-bearingliabilities.
(5)Netinterestmarginrepresentsnetinterestincomeas a percentageof averageinterest-earningassets.
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Wte/Volume Analysis
Net interest income can also be analyzed in terms of

the impact of changing interest rates on interest-em-ning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities and changing the
volume or amount of these assets and liabilities. The
following table represents the extent to which changes
in interest rates and changes in the volume of interest-
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities have
affected the Company’s interest income and interest

Year Ended
June 30, 1998
Compared to
Year Ended

June 30, 1997
Increase/(Decrease)

expense during the periods indicated. Information is
provided in each category with respect to (i) changes
attributable to changes in volume (change in volume
multiplied by prior rate), (ii) changes attributable to
rate (changes in rate multiplied by prior volume), and
(iii) the net change. Changes attributable to the com-
bined impact of volume and_rate have been allocated
proportionately to the changes due to the volume and
~he-changes due to rate. -

Year Ended
June 30, 1997
Compared to
Year Ended

June 30, 1996
Increase/(Decrease)

Due to Due to
Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net

(Dollarsin thousands)
Interest-earning assets:
Real estate loans $16,466 $(1,607) $14,859
Other loans (5) 32
Investment securities (3,317) 462 (2,8;;)
Mortgage-backed securities 5,973 (215) 5,758
Federal funds sold (261) (94) (355)
Total $18,856 $(1,422) $17,434
Interest-bearing liabilities:
NOW, Super NOW and

Money market accounts $ [~~] $ [~~] $ (273)
Savings accounts (564)
Certificates of de~osit 4.465 840 5.305
Mortgagors’ escr;w ‘ 19 (4) ‘ 15
Borrowed funds 10,558 330

io;g88

Total 14.598 773 .15.371
Net change in interest income $4,258 $(2,195) $2,063

Comparison of Financial Condition
at June 30, 1998 and June 30, 1997
Assets. The Company’s assets totaled $1.62 billion at
June 30, 1998, an increase of $308.9 million from total
assets of $1.32 billion at June 30, 1997. The growth in
assets was experienced primarily in real estate loans
and mortgage-backed securities available for sale, which
increased $199.9 million and $133.7 million, respectively.

The increase in real estate loans restited primarily
from originations of $321.2 million during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1998, of which $308.4 million were mtiti-
family and underlying cooperative and non-residential
loans. The increased loan originations resulted from both
an active local real estate market and a decline through-
out the year of medium- and long-term market interest
rates. The increase in mortgage-backed securities avail-
able for sale resulted from purchases of $290.6 million
during the year ended June 30, 1998, primarily attribut-
able to the capital leverage program. See “Management
Strategy.” These purchases were partially offset by sales
and calls of $92.8 million and principal repayments of
$64.5 million on these securities. Mortgage-backed

$18,182 $(2,531) $15,651
177 (57) 120

6,339 1,577 7,916
11,571 206 11,777

905 42 947
$37,174 $ (763) $36,411

$ z ::: $ ~20:, $ 770
2,403

12;893 (37) 12,856
9 (2) 7

~,975- .--’

37 2,012
18,276 (228) 18,048

$18,898 $ (535) $18,363

Year Ended
June 30, 1996
Compared to
Year Ended

June 30, 1995
Increase/( Decrease)

Due to
Volume Rate Net

$ :021 $ 137 $ 939

1,431 (::) 1,3;:
(24) 487 463

1,036 (411) 625
$3,217 $ 179 $3,396

$ ~jfi] $ (6) $ ~;~]
190

3,846 1,596 5,442
8 (7) 1

(6) ‘ ‘1 (5J
2,796 1.774 4.570

$ 421 $(1,595) $(1,174)

securities held-to-maturity declined $31.7 million, as
proceeds from sales and principal repayments on
these securities were utilized to fund loan originations
and purchases of mortgage-backed securities available
for sale.

Liabilities. Funding for the growth in real estate loans
was obtained primarily from increased deposits of
$74.9 million, primarily reflecting an increase in certifi-
cates of deposit with maturities of one year or less and
increased FHLBNY advances of $40.3 million during
the past fiscal year. Funding for the increase in mort-
gage-backed securities available for sale was obtained
primarily from increased securities sold under agree-
ment to repurchase transactions of $180.3 million,
consistent with the capital leverage program.

As of June 30,1998, assets were increased by $18.0 mil-
lion due to unsettled sales of mortgage-backed securities,
and liabilities were increased by $12.1 million, respectively,
due to purchases of investment and mortgage-backed
securities for which settlement had not occurred.

13



Stockholders’ Equity. Stockholders’ equity declined $4.6
million to $186.3 million at June 30, 1998, from $190.9
million at June 30, 1997. During the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1998, the Company repurchased 919,837 sh&es
of its common stock into treasury at an aggregate cost
of $20.8 million. Offsetting the share repurchases was
retained net income of $13.1 million, amortization of
the Company’s ESOP and RRP of $5.4 million, and an
increase of $732,000 of the unrealized gain on invest-
ment and mortgage-backed securities available for
sale. Also contributing to the decline on stockholders’
equity during the year ended June 30, 1998 were cash
dividends declared and paid totaling $2.6 million.

Comparison of Financial Condition
at June 30, 1997 and June 30, 1996

The Company’s assets totaled $1.32 billion at June 30,
1997, a decrease of $56.8 million from total assets of
$1.37 billion at June 30, 1996. This decline resulted
primarily from the refund, on July 1, 1996, of $131.1
million in excess proceeds related to the oversubscrip-
tion to the Company’s initial public offering (the
“oversubscription Refund”), which were included in
Escrow and other deposits at June 30, 1996. The over-
subscription refund was paid from the proceeds of
matured investment securities of $125.0 million, and
from a reduction of $6.1 million in federal funds sold.
Removing the effects of the Oversubscription Refund,
total assets increased $74.3 million, Reflecting the
Company’s capital leverage strategy.

Real estate loans and loans held for sale increased
$166.4 million, restiting primarily from originations of
$262.2 million during the year ended June 30, 1997, of
which $256.2 million were multi-family and underlying
cooperative and non-residential loans. Mortgage-backed
securities increased $98.6 million and investment securi-
ties held-to-maturity increased $58.0 million, respectively,
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997. Much of the
growth in these assets was realized from the movement
of earning assets from lower-yielding investment securi-
ties available for sale and federal funds sold into these
higher-yielding assets. II-Iaddition, in order to fwd the
growth in these assets, borrowings increased $111.8 mil-
lion and deposits increased $13.3 million. At June 30,
1996, the Company had an unsettled security purchase
totaling $34.0 million, which was funded in July 1996.
No such unsettled trades existed as of June 30, 19”97. -

Stockholders’ equity totaled $190.9 million at June 30,
1997, a decrease of $22.2 million from June 30, 1996.
The decrease resulted primarily from the $27.7 million
repurchase of the Company’s common stock into treasury,
and the $10.8 million open market purchase of the
Company’s common stock by the RRP during the year
ended June 30, 1997. Offsetting these items was net
income of $12.3 million, an increase of $1.7 million in
the equity component of the unrealized gain on available
for sale securities and a direct contribution to stockhold-
ers’ equity of $3.1 million related to the benefit expense
associated with the Company’s ESOP and RRP Plans.

Comparison of. Operating Results for the
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 1998 and 1997
General. Net income for the fiscal year ended June 30,
1998 totaled $13.1 million compared to $12.3 million
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997. Net income
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997 was affected by
the New York State and New York City income tax
recoveries of $1.9 million and $1.0 million, respectively,
and the one-time special assessment of $1.1 million,
after taxes, for the recapitalization of the SAIF recorded
during the quarter ended September 30, 1996. Net
income for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, exclud-
ing these non-recurring items, was $10,5 million. Net
income for the year ended June 30, 1998; includes an
after-tax gain of $1.1 million related to the sale of the
Roslyn branch premise, and an after-tax charge of $1.2
million related to an early retirement program offered
during the year.

Net interest income. Net interest income totaled $49.5
million during the year ended June 30, 1998, compared
to $47.5 million in the previous year. This increase was
attributable primarily to an increase of $227.1 million in
average balance of interest-earning assets, offset by a
decline in the net interest rate spread of 41 basis points,
reflecting the flat yield curve interest rate environment
experienced during the 1998 fiscal year. See “Discussion
of Market Risk.” The net interest margin declined 51
basis points from 4.07% for the year ended June 30, 1997
to 3.56% for the year ended June 30, 1998.

Interest Income. Interest income for the year ended
June 30, 1998 was $106.5 million, an increase of $17.5
million from $89.0 million during the year ended June 30,
1997. The largest components contributing to this
increase were interest income on real estate loans and
mortgage-backed securities, which increased by $14.9
million and $5.8 million, respectively. The increase in
interest income on real estate loans was attributable
primarily to an increase of $194.8 million in the average
balance of real estate loans, resulting from new loa orig-
inations of $321.2 million during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1998. The increases in interest income on mort-
gage-backed securities was also attributable primarily
to increases in the average balances of $88.6 million,
resulting from $169.1 million in net purchases of mort-
gage-backed securities as part of the Company’s capital
leverage program. Partially offsetting these increases to
interest income was a decrease in interest income on
investment securities of $2.9 million, primarily resulting
from a decline in average balance of investment securi-
ties of $51.5 million. The decline in the average balance
resrdted from the Company utilizing funds from matured
investment securities to fund loan originations. Overall,
the yield on interest-earning assets remained constant
at 7.64%, as the impact from the movement of funds
from investment securities to higher-yielding real
estate loans, was offset by a decline in average yield on
real estate loans of 22 basis points due to the decline in
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medium- and long-term interest rates and increased
interest rate competition throughout the 1998 fiscal
year. See “Discussion of Market Risk.” In addition, the
yield on mortgage-backed securities declined 7 basis
points due to both prepayments on higher-yielding secu-
rities and the interest rate environment experienced
during the year.

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased $15.3 mil-
lion, to $56.9 million during the fiscal year ended June 30,
1998, from $41.6 million during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1997. This increase resulted primarily from
increases of $5.3 million and $10.9 million in interest
expense on certificate of deposit accounts and borrowed
funds, respectively, which resulted primarily from
increased average balances of $78.6 million and $179.9
million, respectively during the fiscal year ended June 30,
1998, compared to the fiscal year ended June 30Y 1997.
The increase in the average balance on certificates of
deposit resulted primarily from increased deposit flows
due to competitive rates offered on selected certificate
accounts for the past twelve months. The increase i.n
average balance of borrowed funds resulted primarily
from approximately $180.3 million of borrowed funds
added for the period July 1, 1997 to June 30, 1998,
under the capital leverage program. In addition to the
growth in average balances, the average cost of interest-
bearing liabilities increased 42 basis points to 4.68% for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, from 4.26% in the
previous year. The increase in average cost resulted
from an increase of $78.6 million in the average balance
of certificate of deposit accounts, which generally have
a higher average cost than other deposits, the increase
of 15 basis points in the average cost on certificate of
deposit accounts resulting from a rate promotion insti-
tuted for the past_ tw~lve months, and an increase of
42 basis points in the.average cost on borrowed funds
resulting from an increase in the average balance of
higher-rate, longer-term borrowings undertaken duting
the recent fiscal year in order to fund loan originations
and the capital leverage program.

Provision for Loan Losses. The provision for loan losses
decreased $2.6 million to $1.6 million for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1998 from $4.2 million for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1997. The Allowance for Loan Losses
increased by $1.3 million during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1998, as the loan loss provision of $1.6 million
was partially offset by net charge-offs of $286,000. While
the allowance for loan losses increased, non-performing
loans declined from $3.2 million at June 30, 1997, to
$884,000 at June 30, 1998. The Allowance for Loan
Losses as a percentage of non-performing loans and total
loans was 1,365.95% and 1.27%, respectively at Jtie 30,
1998, compared to 336.24% and 1.43%, respectivel~ at
June 30, 1997. The reduction in the provision reflects
the significant decline experienced in non-performing
loans during the past year. However, in management’s
judgment, it was prudent to continue the loan loss

provision, and thereby increase the loan loss allowance,
based upon the Company’s growing volume of multi-fam-
ily loan originations, the composition of its loan portfolio
and the Company’s historical charge-off experience. See
“Asset Quality.”

Non-Interest Income. Non-interest income increased
$2.9 million to $7.0 million during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1998 compared to $4.1 million during the fis-.
cal year ended June 30, 1997. This increase was attrib-
utable primarily to a gain of $1.9 million from the sale
of the Bank’s Roslyn branch premise in May 1998. In
addition, service charges and other fees increased
$418,000 due to various increases in loan and deposit
fees, and other income increased $459,000 due primarily
to increased income on FHLBNY capital stock and a
reimbursement of $182,000 of legal expenses previously
provided, which was recorded in other income. See
“Non-Interest Expense.”

Non-Interest Expense. Non-interest expense increased
$2.4 million to $29.9 million during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1998 from $27.5 million during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1997. This increase resulted primarily
from increases of $3.0 million and $2.3 million in sala~
and employee benefits and ESOP and RRP compensation
expense, respectively, offset by declines of $2.1 million,
$336,000 and $484,000, respectively, in federal deposit
insurance premiums, provision for losses on OREO, and
other expenses. The increase in salaries and employee
benefits was attributable primarily to a one-time charge
of $1.6 million related to benefit costs, other than RRP
related costs, associated with an early retirement pro-
gram offered during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998.
The remainder of the increase resdted from general
salary and staff increases. The increase in ESOP and
RRP compensation expense was attributable primarily
to several factors. First, the RRP expense increased $1.5
million as a fill twelve months of expense was recorded
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, compared to
five months of expense recorded during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1997. The RRP was approved in December
1996, and expense recognition began in February 1997. In
addition, a one-time charge of $598,000 was recorded dur-
ing the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, related to vested
shares of retirees who accepted the early retirement pro-
gram. Finally, the ESOP compensation expense increased
$787,000 due to the 50% appreciation in the average price
of the Company’s common stock during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1998, as the periodic ESOP compensation
e~ense, under GAAP, is recorded based upon the average
market value of the Company’s common stock.

The increase in data processing costs resulted from
both increased loan and deposit system utilization
charges and expenses recorded related to the Year 2000
computer compliance. See “The Year 2000 Problem.” The
decline in federal deposit insurance expense resulted pri-
marily from the non-recurring SAIF special assessment
of $2.1 million which was recorded during the fiscal year
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ended June 30, 1997. The reduction in provision for
losses on OREO resulted primarily from a decline of
49% in the average balance of OREO during the most
recent fiscal year. The reduction in other expenses was
attributable primarily to reduced legal expenses due
to the settlement of a lawsuit during the past fiscal
year, which had caused an increase in legal expenses
in prior years. The settlement of such lawsuit resulted
in a reimbursement of certain of such expenses. The.
Company anticipates that its sale of the Roslyn branch
premise will result in cost efficiencies for future peri-
ods related to occupancy and equipment and other
operating expenses.

Income Tax Expense. Income tax expense totaled $11.9”
million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, com-
pared to $7.6 million for the fiscal year ended June 30,
1997. Income tax expense was reduced by $2.9 million
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, due to New
York State and New York City recoveries of $1.9 million
and $1.0 million, respectively, related to the Bank’s
deferred tax liability. Income tax expense, exclusive of
these recoveries, totaled $10.5 million during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1997. The increase of $1.4 million
in income taxes, excluding the non-recurring recoveries,
was primarily attributable to an increase of $5.1 million
in pre-tax income, offset by a reduction in the effective
tax rate. During the year ended June 30, 1998, the
Company’s effective tax rate was 47.53% compared to-
52.61% in the prior year (excluding the non-recurring
income tax recoveries). The decline in the effective tax
rate was primarily attributable to certain tax benefits
associated with the formation and tiding of subsidiaries
of the Bank during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998.

Comparison of Operating Results for the
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 1997 and 1996
General. Net income for the fiscal year ended June 30,
1997 totaled $12.3 million compared to $6.3 million
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996. Net income
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997 was affected by
the New York State and New York City income tax
recoveries of $1.9 million and $1.0 million, respectively,
and the one-time special assessment of $1.1 million,
after taxes, for the recapitalization of the SAIF recorded
during the quarter ended September 30, 1996. Net
income for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, excluding
these non-recurring items, was $10.5 million.

Also affecting the comparison of the fiscal years ended
June 30, 1997 and 1996 was the Company’s adoption,
on July 1, 1995, of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 106, “Accounting for Postretirement
Benefits Other than Pensions,” whereby the Company
elected to record the full accumulated postretirement
medical benefit obligation upon adoption. Adoption of
this standard resulted in a cumulative effect reduction
of net income of approximately $1.0 million for the fis-
cal year ended June 30, 1996. Income before cumulative
effect of change in accounting principles for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1996 was $7.3 million.

Net Interest Income. Net interest income totaled $47.5
million during the year ended June 30, 1997 compared to
$29.1 million. This increase was attributable primarily to
an increase of $506.2 million in average balance of inter-
est-earning assets, offset by a decline in the net interest
rate spread of 47 basis points. The net interest margin
declined 34 basis points from 4.41% for the year ended
June 30, 1996 to 4.07% for the year ended June 30, 1997.

Interest Income. Interest income for the year ended
J’we 30, 1997 was $89.0 million, an increase of $36.4
million from $52.6 million during the year ended June 30,
1996. The largest components contributing to this
increase were interest income on real estate loans, invest-
ment securities and mortgage-backed securities, which
increased by $15.7 million, $7.9 million and $11.8 million,
respectively. The increase in interest income on real
estate loans was attributable primarily to an increase of
$207.0 million in the average balance of real estate loans,
resulting from both the acquisition of $113.1 million of
loans from Conestoga on June 26, 1996, and new loan
originations of $262.2 million during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1997, offset by a 47 basis point decrease in the
average yield as compared to the prior year. The increases
in interest income on investment securities and mort-
gage-backed securities were also attributable primarily
to increases in average balances of $108.6 million and
$172.3 million, respectively during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1997 compared to the fiscal year ended June 30,
1996. The acquisition of $170.8 million and $124.4 mil-
lion of investment securities and mortgage-backed
securities, respectively, from Conestoga, contributed
significantly to these average balance increases. In addi-
tion, the average yield on investment securities and
mortgage-backed securities increased by 98 basis points
and 12 basis points, respectively, during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1997, compared to the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1996, contributing si@cantly to the increase
in interest income. This increaee in yields resulted pri-
marily from both higher yields on securities acquired or
repricing during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, as
well as the acquisition of higher-yielding investment and
mortgage-backed securities from Conestoga.

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased $18.1
million, to $41.6 million during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1997, from $23.5 million during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1996. This increase resulted pri-
marily from increases of $12.9 million, $2.4 million
and $2.0 million in interest expense on certificate
of deposit accounts, savings accounts and borrowed
funds, respectively, which resulted from increased
average balances of $230.0 million, $117.2 million
and $34.6 million, respectively, during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1997, compared to the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1996. The acquisition of $216.3 million
and $129.2 million of certificate of deposit accounts
and savings accounts, respectively, from Conestoga
contributed significantly to these average balance
increases. The increase in borrowing resulted from the
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capital leverage strategy instituted during the current
fiscal year. See “Management Strategy.” Overall, the
average cost of interest-bearing liabilities increased
13 basis points from 4.12% during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1996, to 4.2590 during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1997, due primarily to an increase of
48 basis points in the average cost on NOW, Super
NOW and money market accounts, which resulted from
increased rates offered on these deposits under man-
agement’s deposit pricing strategy, and an increase of
10 basis points on the cost of borrowed funds resulting
from the current year borrowing activity.

Provision for Loan Losses. The provision for loan losses
increased $1.2 million to $4.2 million for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1997 horn $3.0 million for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1996. The allowance for loan losses
increased by $2,9 million during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1997, as the loan loss provision of $4.2 million
was partially offset by net charge-offs of $1.3 million.
While the allowance for loan losses increased, non-per-
forming loans declined from $6.6 million at June 30,
1996, to $3.2 million at June 30, 1997. The allowance for
loan losses as a percentage of non-performing loans and
total loans was 336.24% and 1.43%, respectively at June 30,
1997, compared to 119.25% and 1.34%, respectively, at
June 30, 1996. In mti~ement’s judgment, it was prudent
to continue the loan loss provision in order to supplement
the loan loss allowance, based upon the Company’s grow-
ing volume of multi-family loan originations, the composi-
tion of its loan portfolio and the Company’s historical
charge-off experience. See “Asset Quality.”

Non-Interest Income. Non-interest income increased
$2.7 million to $4.1 million during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1997 compared to $1.4 million during the fis-
cal year ended June 30, 1996. This increase was attrib-
utable primarily to increases of $1.0 million and
$733,000 in service charges and other fees, and other
income, respectively. Contributing to the increase in
service charges and other fees were increased income of
$465,000 related to deposit accounts attributable to the
growth in deposits from the acquisition of Conestoga,
and increases of $272,000 and $162,000, respectively,
related to safe deposit boxes and the Company’s fund-
ing of official checks. The increase in other income was
attributable primarily to increased rental income of
$241,000 received from retail and other commercial
premises acquired from Conestoga. Also contributing to
the increase in other income were increases of $170,000
and $120,000 on FHLBNY capital stock dividend
income and loan prepayment penalty income, r~spec-
tively. In addition, net gains on sale of assets totaled
$984,000 during the year ended June 30, 1997 com-
pared to a net loss of $18,000 during the year ended
June 30, 1996. Sales of assets occur periodically in
response to management’s review of portfolio assets
in light of current market conditions.

Non-Lnterest Expense. Non-interest expense increased
$13.5 million to $27.5 milIion during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1997 from $14.0 million during the fis-
cal year ended June 30, 1996. Several factors con-
tributed to this increase, including an increase of $2.3
million in federal deposit insurance premium expense.
As a result of the Conestoga Acquisition, the Company
acquired $394.3 million in deposits which were insured
by the SAIF. The Company paid higher assessment
rates on these deposits during the three months ended
September 30, 1996. In addition, the Company was
required to pay $2.0 million, before taxes, related to
the SAIF special assessment paid during the three
months ended September 30, 1996 on all of its SAIF
deposits, which were primarily comprised of the deposits
obtained from Conestoga. Aa a result of the recapitaliza-
tion of SAIF, the Company which currently has a Bank
Insurance Fund (“BIF’’)/SAIF deposit ratio of 54/46, has
experienced a reduction in FDIC insurance expense
during all fiscal quarters subsequent to September 30,
1996. See “Impact of Recent Legislation.” Shordd the
Company maintain its status as a well-capitalized
institution, given the current FDIC assessment rates,
this reduction in quarterly FDIC insurance expense is
expected to continue. During the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1996, the Company received a refund from
the FDIC of $319,000 related to the Company’s insur-
ance expense, which reduced its federal deposit insur-
ance premium expense for the period to $109,000.
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996, virtually
all of the Company’s deposits were insured by the BIF.
See “Impact of Recent Legislation.”

Salary and employee benefits, occupancy and equip-
ment, data processing, and other operating expenses
increased $2.4 million, $1.3 million, $443,000 and $1.8
tilion, respectively, resulting from both the acquisi-
tion of Conestoga and increased costs associated with
activities as a public company. In addition, during the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, the Company incurred
increased expenses of $2.9 million related ESOP and
RRP benefits, and $2.4 million related to goodwill amor-
tization resulting from its. acquisition of Conestoga.
Only minor expenses were recorded during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1996 related to these items, as
the Company completed its initial public offering (from
which the ESOP and RRP were generated) and its
acquisition of Conestoga (from which goodwill was
generated) on June 26, 1996. Partially offsetting these
increased expenses was a decrease of $136,000 related
to losses on other real estate owned, resulting from
management’s periodic review of reserves established
for losses on other real estate owned. Overall, non-
interest expense was 2.2470 of average assets for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1997. Excluding the effects
of the non-recurring SAIF charge, non-interest expense
was 2.0790 of average assets during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1997 compared to 2.06% for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1996.
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Income Tax Expense.” Income tax expense totaled $7.6 @-
lion. Income tax expense was reduced by $2.9 million dur-
ing the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, due to New York
State and New York City recoveries of $1.9 million and
$1.0 million, respectively, related to the Company’s
deferred tax liability. Both of these recoveries resulted
fi-om recent tax legislation passed by both New York State
and New York City. See “Impact of Recent Legislation.”
Income tax expense, exclusive of these recoveries, totaled
$10.5 million during the fiscal year ended June 30,1997,
compared to $6.2 million during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1996, an increase of $4.3 million. This increase
was attributable to both an increase of $6.4 million in pre-
tax income and an increase in the effective tax rate from
45.9% for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996, to 52.6% for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997. The increased effec-
tive tax rate during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997,
(before recoveries) resulted primarily horn the acquisition
of Conestoga being accounted for as a tax-free transaction,
resulting in the Company receiving no tax benefit for
goodwill expense. In addition, the Company received
no tax deduction for $666,000 of ESOP compensation
expense related to the excess of the average fair market
value of the Company’s stock during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1997, over the original purchase price
of the stock by the ESOP. Excluding the effects of these
items, the effective tax rate for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1997 was 45.6%.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices
The Financial Statements and Notes thereto presented

herein have been prepared in accordance with GAAP,
which require the measurement of financial position and
operating results in terms of historical dollars without
considefig the changes ‘in the relative purchasing power
of money over time due to inflation. The impact of infla-
tion is reflected in the increased cost of the Company’s
operations. Urdike industrial companies, nearly all of
the assets and liabilities of the Company are monetary in
nature. Aa a result, interest rates have a greater impact
on the Company’s performance than do the effects of gen-
eral levels of inflation. Interest raks do not necessarily
move in the same direction or to the same extent as the
price of goods and services.

Impact of Recent Legislation
Deposit Insurance — SAIF Recapitalization. In response
to the disparity in deposit insurance assessment rates
that existed between banks insured by the BIF and
thrifts insured by the SAIF, the Deposit Funds
Insurance Act of 1996 (the “Funds Act”) was enacted on
September 30, 1996. The Funds Act authorized the
FDIC to impose a special assessment on all institutions
with SAIF-assessable deposits in the amount necessary
to recapitalize the SAIF. The special SAIF assessment
for the Company of $2.0 million, or $1.1 million net of
taxes, was charged against income in the quarter ended
September 30, 1996 and paid in November 1996. -

As a result of the recapitalization of the SAIF in 199~
after the enactment of the Funds Act, the FDIC reduced
the assessment rates for deposit insurance for SAIF-
assessable deposits for 1997 to a range of O to 27 basis

points. The Company’s SAIF-assessable deposits are also
subject to assessments for payments on the bonds issued
in the late 1980’s by the Financial Corporation (the ‘TICO”
bonds) to recapit~e the now defunct Federal Savings and
Loan Insurance Corporation. The Company’s total expenses
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, for the assess-
ments for deposit insurance and the FICO paymenh was
$350,000 which was a reduction from the total amount of
$423,000 paid during the fiscal year ended June 30, “1997.

Recapture of Bad Debt Reserves. The Company as a ‘large
bank” (one with assets having an adjusted basis of more ~
than $500 million), is unable to make additions to its tax
bad debt reserve, is permitted to deduct bad debts only aa
they occur and is required to recapture (i.e., take into
income) over a multi-year period, a portion of the balance
of its bad debt reserves as of June 30, 1997. Since the
Company has already provided a deferred income tax lia-
bility for this tax for fiancial reporting purposes, there
was no adverse impact to the CompanYs financial condi-
tion or restits of operations born the enactment of federal
legislation that imposed such recapture.

New York State (the “State”) has enacted legislation,
that has enabled the Company to avoid recapture into
income the State tax bad debt reserves that otherwise
wodd have occurred as a result of changes in the federal
law. New York City has enacted legislation similar to the
State legislation.

The Year 2000 Problem
The Year 2000 Problem centers upon the inability of

computer systems to recognize the year 2000. Many
existing computer programs and systems were originally
programmed with six digit dates that provided only two
digits to,identi~ the calendar year in the date field,
without considering the upcoming change in the century.
With the impending millennium, these programs and
computers will recognize “00” aa the year 1900 rather
than the year 2000. Like most financial providers, the
Company and its operations may be significantly affected
by the Year 2000 Problem due to the nature of financial
information. Software, hardware and equipment both
within and outside the Company’s direct control and
with whom the Company electronically or operationally
interfaces (e.g., third party vendors providing data pro-
cessing, information system management, maintenance
of computer systems, and credit bureau information) are
likely to be affected. Furthermore, if computer systems
are not adequately changed to identi~ the Year 200”0,
many computer applications could fail or create erro-
neous results. As a result, many calculations which rely
upon the date field information, such as interest, pay-
ment or due dates and other operating functions, will
generate results which could be significantly misstated,
and the Company could experience a temporary inability
to process transactions, send invoices or engage in similar
normal business activities. In addition, under certain
circumstances, failure to adequately address the Year
2000 Problem could adversely affect the viability of the
Company’s suppliers and creditors and the creditworthi-
ness of its borrowers. Thus, if not adequately addressed,
the Year 2000 Problem could result in a significant
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adverse impact upon the Company’s products, services
and competitive condition.

The Company has fully completed its assessment of the
Year 2000 Problem. The Company has already replaced
andfor upgraded several internal systems in order b
ensure Year 2000 compliance and has entered the compli-
ance testing phase on its loan and deposit systems. All
testing is expected to be completed prior to December 31,
1998. The Company utilizes outside vendors for software
related to its major application systems. As a part of i~
assessment procedures, the Company assessed the action
plans regarding the Year 2000 Problem for each outs~de
vendor. The Company presently believes that, with contin-
ued motivations to existing software and conversions-”ti
new sotiare, the Year 2000 Problem will be mitigated
without causing a material adverse effect upon the opera-
tions of the Company At this time, management of the
Company believes that all critical modifications and con-
versions will be completed in a timely manner. However, if
such modifications and conversions are not made, or are
not completed timely, the Year 2000 Problem could have a
material adverse impact upon the Compan~s operations.

In the event that system failures occur related to the
Year 2000 Problem, the Company has developed contin-
gency plans, which involve, among other actions, utiliza-
tion of an alternate service provider or alternate products
available through the current vendor.

Monitoring and managing the Year 2000 project al
result in additional direct and indirect costs to the
Company. Direct costs include potential charges by
third party software vendors for product enhancements,
costs involved in testing software products for Year 2000
compliance, and any resulting costs for developing and
implementing contingency plans for critical software
products which are not enhanced. Indirect costs will_
principally consist of the time devoted by existing
employees in monitoring software vendor progress, test-
ing enhanced software products and implementing any
necessary contingency plans. The Company estimates
that total costs related to the Year 2000 Problem will
not exceed $100,000. Both direct and indirect costs of
addressing the Year 2000 Problem will be charged to
earnings as incurred. To date, over one-half of the total
estimated costs associated with the Year 2000 Problem
have already been expensed.

Impact of Recent Accounting Standards
In June 1997, the Financial Accounting Standards

Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income”
(“SFAS 130”). SFAS 130 establishes standards for
reporting and display of comprehensive income and. its
components in a full set of general purpose financial
statements. SFM 130 requires that financial state:
ments report and display comprehensive income in the
same prominence as net income, but permits the state-
ment of comprehensive income to be presented either
together with or apart from the income statement.
Comprehensive income, as defined by SFAS 13_0,
includes revenues, expenses, and gains and losses.
which, under current GAAP, bypass net income and

are typically reported as a component of stockholders’
equity. SFAS 130 is applicable for all entities which
present a full set of financial statements and is effec-
tive for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 1997,
with early adoption permitted. Management is currently
evaluating SFAS 130.

In June 1997, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 131, “Disclosures About Segments of
an Enterprise and Related Information” (“SFAS 13 l“).
SFAS 131 introduces a new method for segment report-
ing referred to as the “m_anagement approach,” which
focuses upon the manner in which the chief operating
decision makers organize segments within a company
for making operating decisions and assessing perfor-
mance. Under the management approach, reportable
segments can be based upon, but are not limited to,
products and services, geography and legal or manage-
ment structure. SFAS 131 requires full financial disclo-
sure for each segment, but only requires limited
quarterly segment disclosure. SFAS 131 is applicable
for all public, for-profit companies, and is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 1997, with
early application encouraged. Management is currently
evaluating SFM 131.

In February 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued Statement “of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 132, “Disclosures About Pensions and
Other Postretirement Benefits” (“SFAS 132”). SFAS 132
amends disclosure requirements related to pension and
other postretirement benefits previously required
under Statements of Financial Accounts Standards
Nos. 87, 88 and 106. SFAS 132 does not change the
measurement or recognition of these plans. Adoption
of SFAS 132 is required for all fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 1997.

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued Statement of Finan~ial Accounting
Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 133”).
SFAS 133 requires that entities recognize all deriva-
tives as either assets or liabilities in the statement of
financial condition and measure those instruments at
fair value. Under SFM 133 an entity may designate a
derivative as a hedge of exposure to either changes in:
(a) fair value of a recognized asset or liability or firm
commitment, (b) cash flows of a recognized or fore-
casted transaction, or (c) foreign currencies of a net
investment in foreign operations, firm commitments,
available-for-sale securities or a forecasted transac-
tion. Depending upon the effectiveness of the hedge
and/or the transaction being hedged, any changes in
the fair value of the derivative instrument is either
recognized in earnings in the current year, deferred to
future periods, or recognized in other comprehensive
income. Changes in the f&r value of all derivative instru-
ments not recognized as hedge accounting are recognized
in cu~ent year earnings. Adoption of SFAS 133 is
required for all fiscal quarters or fiscal years beginning
after June 15, 1999.
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MARKETFORTHECOMPANY’SCOMMONSTOCK
AND RELATEDSTOCKHOLDERMA~ERS

Dime Community Bancshares, Inc. Common Stock The following table shows the high and low sales price
is traded on the Nasdaq National Market and quoted for the Company’s common stock and dividends declared
under the symbol “DCOM.” Prior to June 15, 1998, by the Company during the period indicated. The
the Company’s common stock was quoted under- the Company’s common stock began trading on June 26,
symbol “DIME.” 1996, the date of the initial public offering.

Fiscal Year End June 30, 1998 Fiscal Year End June 30, 1997
High Low High Low

Dividends Sales Sales Dividends Sales Sales
Quarter Ended Declared Price Price Declared Price Price
September 30th $– $201/2
December 31st 0.06 253/~
March 31st 0.08 251/4
June 30th $0.09 $291/2

On June 30, 1998, the last trading date in the fiscal year,
the Company’s stock closed at $27s/1. At September 25,
1998, the Company had approximately 1,029 shareholders
of record, not including the number of persons or entities
holding stock in nominee or street name through various
brokers and banks. There were 12,176,513 shares of
common stock outstanding at June 30, 1998.

As the principal asset of the Company, from time-to-
time the Bank may be the principal source of funds for
payment of dividends by the Company. The Bank will not
be permitted to pay dividends on its capital stock if its
stockholders’ equity would be reduced below applicable
regulatory requirements or the amount required for the
liquidation account established during the B*>S conver-
sion. See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
of the Company for a further discussion of the liquidation
account. The OTS capital distribution re~ations applica-
ble to savings institutions (such as the Bank) that meet
their regulatory capital requirements, generally limit divi-
dend payments in any year to the greater of (i) 100% of
year-to-date net income plus an amount that would reduce

$183/8 — $14 $113/4
lg3/g — 15 l/~ 13 l/~
~83/~ ~95/8 14 1/2

$243/8 $0.OG $20 $16S18

surplus capital by one-half or (ii) 75~o of net income for the
most recent four quarters. Surplus capital is the excess of
actual capital at the begi~g of the year over the institu-
tion’s tium regulatory capital requirement. In addi-
tion, capital distributions horn the Bank to the Company
ifin excess of established limits, could restit in recapture
of the Bank’s New York State and City bad debt reserves.
See Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of
the Company for a &her discussion of tfis tax matter.

Unlike the Bank, the Company is not subject to OTS
re~atory restrictions on the payment of dividends to its
shareholders, although the source of such dividends will
be dependent on the net proceeds retained by the
Company and earnings thereon and may be dependent, in
part, upon dividends from the B*. The Company is sub-
ject, however, to the requirements of Delaware law, which
generally limits dividends to an amount equal to the
excess of the net assets of the Company (the amount by
which total assets exceed total liabilities) over its statutiry
capital, or if there is no such excess, to its net profits for
the current and/or immediately preceding fiscal year.

INDEPENDENTAUDITORS’REPORT
To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of the An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
Dime Community Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiary used and significant estimates made by management, as

well as evaluating the overall financial statement presen-
We have audited the accompanying consolidated state- tation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable

ments of condition of Dime Community Bancshares, basis for our opinion.
Inc. (formerly Dime Community Bancorp, Inc. )-and. In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
Subsidiary (the “Company”) as of June 30, 1998 and referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
1997, and the related consolidated statements of opera- the fiancial position of Dime Community Bancshares, Inc.
tions, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for and Subsidiary as of June 30, 1998 and 1997, and the
each of the three years in the period ended June 3-0, restits of their operations and their cash flows for each
1998. These financial statements are the responsibility of the three years in the period ended June 30, 1998 in
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to cotiormity with generalJy accepted accounting principles.
express an opinion on these financial statements based Aa discussed in Notes 1 and 15, effective Jtiy 1, 1995,
on our audits. the Company changed its method of accounting for postre-

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally tirement benefits other than pensions to comply with
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 106.
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial state- &.’k L% ~
ments are free of material misstatement. An audit .

includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting New York, New York
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. August 14, 1998 “
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DIME COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, ~C. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATEDSTATEMENTSOF FINmCIAL CONDITION
(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts)

June 30, 1998 1997

ASSETS:
Cash and due from banks $ 16,266 $ 19,198
Investment securities held-to-maturity

(estimated market value of $78,593
and $102,024 at June 30, 1998 and 1997, respectively) (Note4) 78,091 101,587

Investment securities available for sale (Note4):
Bonds and notes (amortized cost of $72,715

and $52,426 at June 30, 1998 and 1997, respectively) 73,031 52,798
Marketable equity securities (historical cost of $10,425

and $4.912 at June 30, 1998 and 1997, respectively) 12,675 5,889
Mortgage-backed securities held-to-maturity “

(estimated market value of $47,443 and $79,075
at June 30, 1998 and 1997, respectively) (Note5) 46,714 7~,388

Mortgage-backed securities available for sale
(amortized cost of $361,372 and $227,776 at
June 30, 1998 and 1997, respectively) (Note5) 363,875 230,137

Federal funds sold 9,329 18,902
Loans (Note6):

Real estate 943,864 744,246
Other loans 5,716 6,076
Less allowance for loan losses (Note7) (12,075) (10,726)

~tal loans, net 937,505 739,596

Loans held for sale 541 262
Premises and fixed assets (Note9) 10,742 13,995
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York capital stock (Note10) 10,754 8,322
Other real estate owned, net (Note7) 825 1,697
Goodwill (Note3) 24,028 26,433
Receivable for securities sold 18,008
Other assets (Notes14and 15)

—
21,542 17,822

Total Assets $1,623,926 $1,315,026-

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Liabilities:
Due to depositors (Note 11) $1,038,342 $ 963,395
Escrow and other deposits 15,395 14,974
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase (Note12) 256,601 76,333
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York advances (Note 13). 103,505 63,210
Payable for securities purchased 12,062
Accrued postretirement benefit obligation (Note 15)

—
2,721 2,546

Other liabilities (Note 15) 8,951 3,679

Total Liabilities 1;437,577 1,124,137

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 16)

Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred stock ($0.01 par, 9,000,000 shares authorized,

none issued or outstanding at June 30, 1998 and June 30, 1997) —
Common stock ($0.01 par, 45,000,000 shares authorized,

—

14,551,100 shares and 14,547,500 shares issued at June 30, 1998
and 1997, respectively, and 12,176,513 and 13,092,750 shares
outstanding at June 30, 1998 and 1997, respectively. 145 145

Additional paid-in capital 143,322 141,716
Unallocated common stock of Employee Stock Ownership Plan (Note 15) (9,175) ‘ (10,324)
Unearned common stock of Recognition and Retention-Plan (Note 15) (6,963) (9,671)
Common stock held by Benefit Maintenance Plan (Note 15). (431)
Treasury stock, at cost (2,374,587 shares and 1,454,750 shares

—

at June 30, 1998 and 1997, respectively) (Note18) 1. U (48,470) (27,703)
Retained earnings (Note2) 105,158 94,695
Unrealized gain on securities available for sale, net of defe-medtaxes 2,763 2,031

Total Stockholders’ Equity 186,349 190,889

Total Liabilities And Stockholders’ Equity $1,623,926 $1,315,026

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DIME COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, ~C. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATEDSTATEMENTSOF OPERATIONS
(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts)

For the Years Ended June 30, 1998 1997 1996
Interest incom=
Loans secured by real estate $69,824 $54,965 $39,314
Other loans 487 460 340
Investment securities 10,798 13,654 5,738
Mortgage-backed securities 23,463 17,704 5,927
Federal funds sold 1.892 2.247 1.300

Total interest income 106,464 89,030 52,619

Interest expense:
Deposits and escrow 43,027 38,544 22,508
Borrowed funds 13,908 3,020 1,008
Total interest expense 56,935 41,564 23,516

Net interest income 49,529 47,466 29,103
Provision for loan losses 1,635 4.200 -2.979

Net interest income after ~rovision for loan losses 47,894 43,266 26,124

Non-interest income
Service charges and other fees 2,352 1,934 911
Net gain on sales and redemptions of securities and other assets 2,873 859 (30)
Net gain on sales of loans 108 125 12
Other 1.674 1.215 482

Total non-interest income 7,007 4,133 1,375

Non-interest expense:
Salaries and employee benefits
ESOP and RRP compensation expense
Occupancy and equipment
SAIF special assessment
Federal deposit insurance premiums
Data processing costs
Provision for losses on other real estate owned
Goodwill amortization
Other

12,748
5,378
3,011

—
350

1,169
114

2,405
4.762

9,794
3,058
3,084
2,032

423
1,000

450
2,405
5.246

7,359
114

1,775
—

109
557
586

3.4::

Total non-interest ex~ense 29,937 27,492 14.021

Income before income taxes and cumulative
effect of change in accounting principle 24,964 19,907 13,478

Income tax exDense 11.866 7,591 6,181

Income before cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle 13,098 12,316 7,297

Cumulative effect on prior years of changing
to a different method of accounting for:

Postretirement benefits other than Derisions — — (1.032T

Net income $13,098 $12,316 $6,265

Earnings per Share:
Basic $1.19 $0.95 N/A

Diluted $1.09 $0.95 NIA

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DIME COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSID~Y

CONSOLIDATEDSTATEMENTSOF CHANGESIN STOCKHOLDERS’EQUITY
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

For the Years Ended June 30, 1998 1997 1996

Common Stock (Par Value $0.01):
Balance at beginning of period $ 145 $ 145 $
Issuance of common stock in initial public offering — — lG

Balance at end of period 145 145 145

I Additional Paid-in Capitak
Balance at beginning of period 141,716 141,240
Issuance of common stock in initial public offering

—
— 145,330

Cost of issuance of common stock — (la) (4,107)
Stock options exercised 52
Tax benefit of RRP shares

— —
33

Amortization of excess fair value over cost — ESOP stock 1,521 6& 17

Balance at end of period 143,322 141,716 141,240

Employee Stock Ownership Plain
Balance at beginning of period (10,324) (11,541)
Common stock acquired by ESOP — (11,6;)
Amortization of earned portion of ESOP stock 1,149 1,2G 97

Balance at end of period (9,175) (10,324) (11,541)

Recognition and Retention Plain
Balance at beginning of period (9,671)
Common stock acquired by RRP

—
— (10,8~)

Amortization of earned portion of RRP stock
—

2,708 1,175 —

Balance at end of period (6,963) (9,671) —

Treasury Stock
Balance at beginning of period (27,703)
Purchase of treaaury shares, at cost

—
(20,767) (27,7=) —

Balance at end of period (48,470) (27,703) —

Common Stock Held by Benefit Maintenance Plan:
Balance at beginning of period
Common stock acquired

— —
(43;) — —

Balance at end of period (431) — —

Retained earnings:
Balance at beginning of period 94,695 82,916 76,651
Net income for the period 13,098 12,316 6,265
Cash dividends declared and paid (2,635) (537) —

Balance at end of period 105,158 94,695 82,916

Unrealized gain on securities available for sale, neti
Balance at begiming of period 2,031 .311 416
Change in unrealized gain on securities available for sale

during the period, net of deferred taxes 732 1,720 (105)

Balance at end of period $ 2,763 $ 2,031 $ 311

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DIME COMMUNI-~BMCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATEDSTATEMENTSOF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in thousands)

For the Years Ended June 30, 1998 1997 1996
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTMTIES:
Net Income ~ $ 13,098 $ 12,316 $ 6,265
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activitie%
Net gain on investment and mortgage-backed securities called (9) (79)
Net (gain) loss on investment and mortgage-backed securities sold (1,123) (7;)
Net gain on sale of loans held for sale

164
(108)

Net gain on sale of other assets
(125)

(1,973)
(12)

(19)
Net depreciation and amortization (accretion)

—

ESOP and RRP compensation expense
847 (958) 102

5,378 3,058 114
Provision for loan losses 1,635
Goodwill amortization

4,200 2,979
2,405

(Increase) decrease in loans held for sale
2,405

(171) (3::)
(Increase) decrease in other assets and other real estate owned

322
(3,476)

Increase in accrued postretirement benefit obligation
(2>401) 3,040

Increase in receivable for securities purchased
175 165 2,115

(18,008)
Increase (decrease) in payable for securities purchased

—
12,062

Increase in other liabilities
(33,9=) 33,994

5,272 858 1,677
Net cash provided by (used in) Operating Activities 16,004 (14,941) 50,074
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTMTIES:
Net decrease (increase) in federal funds sold
Proceeds from maturities of investment securities held-to-maturity
Proceeds from maturities of investment securities available for sale
Proceeds from calls of investment securities held-to-maturity
Proceeds from calls of investment securities available for sale
Proceeds from sales of investment securities available for sale
Proceeds from sales of mortgage-backed securities held-to-maturity
Proceeds from sales and calls of mortgage-backed securities available for sale
Purchases of investment securities held-to-maturity
Purchases of investment securities available for sale
Purchases of mortgage-backed securities held-to-maturity
Purchases of mortgage-backed securities available for sale
Principal collected on mortgage-backed securities held-to-maturity
Principal collected on mortgage-backed securities available for sae
Net increase in loans
Cash disbursed in acquisition of Conestoga Bancshares, net of cash acquired
Sales (Purchases) of fixed assets, net
Purchase of Federal Home Loan Bank stock
Net cash (used in) provided by Investing Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTMTIES:
Net increase in due to depositors
Net increase (decrease) in escrow and other deposits
Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank of New York Advances
Increase (decrease) in securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of ESOP stock purchase
Common stock issued for exercise of Stock Options and tax benefits of RRP
Cash disbursed for expenses related to issuance of common stock
Purchase of common stock by the Recognition and Retention Plan
Purchase of common stock by Benefit Maintenance Plan
Cash dividends paid to stockholders

9,573 96,228 (52,253)
10,250 19,075 13,065
63,145 359,710 399,135
42,500 5,000 11,056
11,500 26,011 11,323
13,437 27,253 501
5,317 — 2,555

92,776 16,713
(29,082) (82,010) (9,2;)

(112,930) (126,741) (541,951)
(38,842)

(290,5;)
(11,714)

(115,265)
26,216

(11,554)
12,820 9,995

64,470 28,201 15,877
(199,545) (168,381) (41,856)

— (400)
4,262

(93,074)
(652)

(2,432)
(779)

(718) (123)’
(291,119) 58,002 (299,089)

74,947 13,281 .1,019
421 (126,758) 1.28,625

40,295 47,500
180,268 64,335 (lfi)

— — 133,837
85
— (la) (4,1;)

(10,846) —
(43;) —

(2,635) (5;) —
Purchase of treasury stock (20,767) (27,703j
Net cash (used in) provided by Financing Activities

—

272,183 (40,918) 259,263
(DECREASE) INCREASM IN CASH AND DUE FROM BANHS (2,932)
CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD

2,143 10,248
19,198 17,055 6,807

CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS, END OF PERIOD $ 16,266 $ 19,198 $ 17,055
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFO~TION
Cash paidforincometaxes $ 10,984 $ 8,486 $ 6,993
Cash paid for interest $ 54,941 $ 41,270 $ 23,744
Transfer of loans to other real estate owned $ 779 $ 1,407 $ 1,069
~anefer of investmentand mortgage-backedsecuritiesheld-to-m.ati<tyto availablefor sale $ — $– $ 3,300
Change in unrealized gain on available for sale securities, net of deferred taxes $ 732 $ 1,720 $ (105)

On June 26, 1996, the Bank acquired all of the outstanding common stock of
Conestoga Bancshares, Inc. for cash. In connection with this acquisition,
the following assets were acquired and liabilities assumed:

Fair Value of Investments, Loans and Other Assets Acquired, net
Cash paid for Common Stock

$507,023
(101,272)

Deposits and Other Liabilities Assumed $405.751

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DIME COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBS~~Y

NOTES TO CONSOLID-ATE~FINANCIALSTATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIC~S

Nature of Operations — Dime Community Bancshares,
Inc. (formerly Dime Community Bancorp, Inc.) (the
“Company”), is a Delaware corporation organized by the
Bank for the purpose of acquiring all of the capital stick
of The Dime Savings Bd of Williamsburg (the “Bank”)
issued in the Conversion on June 26, 1996. Presently, the
si~cant assets of the Company are the capital stock of
the Bank, the Company’s loan to the Bank’s ESOP, and
investments of the net conversion proceeds retained by
the Company. The Company is, subject to the financial
reporting requirements of the Sec@ties Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.

The Bd was originally founded in 1864 as a New York
State-chartered mutual savings bank. On November 1,
1995, the Bank converted to a federal mutual savings
bank. The Bank has been, and intends to continue to be,
a community-oriented financial institution providing
financial services and loans for housing within its mar-
ket areas. The Bank maintains its headquarters in the
Williamsburg section of the borough of Brooklyn.
Thirteen additional offices are located in the boroughs of
Brooklyn, Queens, and the Bronx, and in Nassau County

Since the sale of the Company’s stock and the merger
of Conestoga Bancorp, Inc. into the Bank occurred on
June 26, 1996, the Company’s results of operations.
for the year ended June 30, 1996 are comprised of tie
results of operations of the Bank. Earnings per share
information for the Company for the year ended June 30,
1996 is not meaningfii.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — The
accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform
to generally accepted accounting principles. The following
is a description of the si@cant policies:

Principles of Consolidation — The accompanying 1998,
1997 and 1996 consolidakd fmancid statements include
the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned sub-
sidiary, the Bank. All financial statements presented
include the accounts of the Bank’s five wholly owned sub-
sidiaries, Havemeyer Equities Corp. (“HEC”), Botievard
Funding Corp. (“BFC”), Havemeyer Brokerage Corp.
(“HBC”), Havemeyer Investments Inc. (“HII”) and DSBW
Residential Preferred Funding Corp. (“DRPFC”). HBC’S
primary fmction is the management of an investment
securities portfolio. HII was established during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1998, and its primary function is the
sale of insurance and annuity products. DRPFC, estab-
lished in March 1998, is intended to qualify as real estate
investment trust for federal tax purposes. BFC was
established in order to invest in real estate joint ventures
and other real estate assets. BFC has no investments in
real estate at June 30, 1998, and is currently inactive.
HEC was also originally established in order to invest in
real estate joint ventures and other real estate assets.

In June 1998, HEC assumed direct ownership of DSBW
Preferred Funding Corp. (“DPFC”). DPFC, established
as a direct subsidiary of the Bank in March 1998, is
intended to qualify as real estate investment trust for
federal tax purposes. HEC has no other investments as
of June 30, 1998. All significant intercompany accounts
and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Investment Securities and Mortgage-backed Securities —
Purchases and sales of investments and mortgage-backed
securities are recorded on trade date. Gains and losses on
sales of investment and mortgage-backed securities are
recorded on the specific identtication basis.

SFN No. 115, “Accounting for Investments in Debt and
Equity Securities” (“SFN 115”) requires that debt and
equity securities that have readily detetiable fair val-
ues be carried at fair value unless they are held-to-matu-
rity. Debt securities are classified as held-to-maturity and
carried at amortized cost only if the reporting entity has
a positive intent and ability to hold these securities to
maturity. If not classtied as held-to-maturity, such secu-
rities are classified as securities available for sale or as
trading securities. Unretized holding gains or losses on
securities available for sale are excluded from earnings
and reported net of income taxes as a separate compo-
nent of stoc~olders’ equity. At June 30, 1998 and 1997,
d equity securities are classified as available for sale.

Loans Held for Sale — Mortgage loans originated and
intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at
the lower of aggregate cost or estimated market value.

Allowance for Loan Losses — It is the policy of the
Bank to provide a valuation allowance for estimated
losses on loans based on the Ba&s past loan loss experi-
ence, known and inherent risks in the portfolio, adverse
situations which may affect the borrower’s ability to
repay, estimated value of underlying collateral and cur-
rent economic conditions in the Bank’s lending area.
The allowance is increased by provisions for loan losses
charged to operations and is reduced by charge-offs, net
of recoveries. Management’s periodic evaluation of the
adequacy of the allowance is based on the Bank’s past
loan loss experience, known and inherent risks in the
portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrow-
er’s ability to repay, the estimated value of any underly-
ing collateral, and current economic conditions. While
management uses available information to estimate losses
on loans, future additions to the allowance may be nec-
essary based on changes in economic conditions beyond
management’s control. In addition, various regulatory
agencies, as an integral part of their examination
process, periodically review the Bank’s allowance for loan
losses. Such agencies may require the Bank to recognize
additions to the allowance based on judgments different
from those of management. Management believes, based
upon all relevant and available information, that the
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allowance for loan losses is adequate to absorb losses
inherent in the portfolio.

SFN No. 114, “Accounting by Creditors for Imptient
of a Loan” (“SFN 114”) requires all creditors to acco~t
for impaired loans, except those loans that are accounted
for at fair value or at the lower of cost or fair value, at the
present value of expected future cash flows discounted at
the loan’s effective interest rate. As an expedient, creditirs
may account for impaired loans at the fti value of the
collateral or at the observable market price of the loan if
one exists.

Loan Income Recognition — Interest income on loans is
recorded under the level yield method. Under this method,
discount accretion and premium amortization are included
in interest income.

Accrual of interest is discontinued when its receipt is in
doubt, generally, when a loan becomes ninety days past
due as to principal or interest. When interest accruals are
discontinued, any interest credited to income in the cur-
rent year is reversed. Payments on nonaccrual loans are
applied to principal. Management may elect to continue
the accrual of interest when a loan is in the process of
collection and the estimated fair value of collateral is suf-
ficient to cover the principal balance and accrued inter-
est. Loans are returned to accrual status once the doubt
concerning collectibility has been removed and the bor-
rower has demonstrated performance in accordance with
the loan terms and conditions.

Loan Fees — Loan origination fees and certain direct
loan origination costs are deferred and amortized as a
yield adjustment over the contractual loan terms.

Other Real Estate Owned, net — Properties acquired
as a result of foreclosure on a mortgage loan are classi-
fied as other real estate owned and are recorded at the
lower of the recorded investment in the related loan or
the fair value of the property at the date of acquisition,
with any resulting write down charged to the allowance
for loan losses. Subsequent write downs are charged to
the valuation allowance for possible losses on other real
estate owned.

Premises and Fixed Assets — Landis stated at original
cost. Buildings and furniture and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is
computed by the straight-line method over the estimated
usefil lives of the properties as follows:

Buildings 2.22% to 2.50% per year
Furniture and equipment 10% per year

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the
remaining non-cancelable terms of the related leases.

Earnings Per Share ~EPS) — In December 1997, the
Company adopted “Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 128, “Earnings Per Share” (“SFAS 128”).
SFM 128 establishes new standards for computing and
presenting earnings per share. SFN 128, which replaced
APB Opinion No. 15 (issued by the American Institute

of Ce@ified Public Accountants in 1971) as the authori-
tative guidance for calculation and disclosure of earn-
ings per share. SFAS 128 requires disclosure of basic
earnings per share and diluted earnings per share, for
entities with complex capital structures, on the face of
the income statement, along with a reconciliation of the
numerator and denominator of basic and diluted earn-
ings per share. Earnings per share amounts for the year
ended June 30, 1997 have been restated to reflect the
adoption of SFN 128.

The following is a reconciliation of the numerator and
denominator of basic earnings per share for the years
ended June 30, 1998 and 1997.

FiscalYearEndedJune30, 1998 1997
Numerator:
Net Income $13,098 $12,316

Denominator:
Averageshares outstanding

utilized in the calculation
of basic earnings per share 11,660,744 12,897,686

Unvested shares of Recognition
and Retention Plan 516,777 35,932

Common stock equivalents due to
the dilutive effect of stock options 523,207 46,572

Average shares outstanding utilized
in the calculation of diluted
etigs per share 12,040,728 12,980,190

Common stock equivalents due to the dilutive effect
of stock options are calculated based upon the average
market value of the Company’s common stock during
the fiscal years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997.

Goodwill — Goodwill generated horn the Bank’s
acquisition of Conestoga Bancorp, Inc. on June 26, 1996
is recorded on a straight-line basis over a twelve year
period. In March 1995, the FASB issued SFAS No. 121,
“Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and
for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed 0~” which requires
that long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles
to be held and used by an entity be reviewed for impair-
ment and reported at the lower of carrying amount or
fair value, less cost to sell, whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an
asset may not be recoverable. Since June 26, 1996, no
such event or change in circumstance has occurred which
has caused the Company to review the recorded level of
goodwill associated with assets acquired horn Conestoga.

Income Taxes — Income taxes are accounted for in accor-
dance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” (“SFAS 109”),
which requires that deferred taxes be provided for tempo-
rary Werences between the book and tax bases of assets
and liabilities.

Cash Flows — For purposes of the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows, the Bank considers cash
and due from banks to be cash equivalents.
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Employee Benefits — The Company maintains a
Retirement Plan and 401(k) Plan for substantially
all of its employees, both of which are tax qualified
under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act
of 1974 (ERISA).

The Company provides additional postretirement bene-
fits to employees, which are recorded in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 106,
“Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits
Other Than Pensions” (“SFAS 106”). This Statement
requires accrual of postretirement benefits (such as
health care benefits) during the years an employee
provides services. The Company adopted SFAS 106
on July 1, 1995. As permitted by SFAS 106, the Bank
elected to record the full cumulative liability at the
time of adoption, which resulted in a cumulative effect
adjustment of $1,032, after reduction for income taxes
of $879, which was charged to operations during the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1996.

The Company maintains an Employee Stock Ownerstip
Plan for employees f’ESOP”). Compensation expense related
to the ESOP is recorded in accordance with SOP 93-6j-
which requires the compensation expense to be recorded
during the period in which the shares become co~tted
to be released to participants. The compensation expense
is measured based upon the fair market value of the stick
d-g the period, and, to the extent that the fair value of
the shares committed to be released differs from the orig-
inal cost of such shares, the Merence is recorded as an
adjustment to additional paid-in capital.

In December 1996, the Company adopted a Recognition
and Retention Plan for employees and outside directors
f’RRp”) and Stock Option Plan for Employees and
Outside Directors (the “Stock Option Plan”), which are
subject to the accounting requirements of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFN 123”). SFM 123__~
encourages, but does not require companies to record
compensation cost for stock-based employee compensa-
tion plans at fair value. The Company has chosen to con-
tinue to account for stock-based compensation using the
intrinsic value method prescribed in Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees: and related Interpretations (“&B
25”). Accordingly compensation cost for stock options is
measured as the excess, if any, of the quoted market
price of the Company’s stock at the date of the grant
over the amount an employee must pay to acquire the_
stock. To date, no compensation expense has been
recorded for stock options, since, for all granted options,
the market price on the date of grant equals the amount
employees must pay to acquire the stock. In accordance
with APB 25, compensation expense related to the RRP
is recorded for all shares earned by participants during
the period at $18.64 per share, the average historical
cost of the shares of all RRP shares acquired.

Financial Instruments — Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 119, “Disclosure About
Derivative Financial Instruments and Fair Value of
Financial Instruments,” requires disclosures about
financial instruments, which are defined as futures,

forwards, swap and option contracts and other finan-
cial instruments with similar characteristics. On bal-
ance sheet receivables and payables are excluded from
this definition. The Company did not hold any deriva-
tive financial instruments as defined by SFAS 119 at
June 30, 1998, 1997 or 1996.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards — In June
1996, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 125,
“Accounting for ~ansfers of Financial Assets and
Extinguishments of Liabilities” (“SFAS 125”). SFAS 125
provides consistent standards for distinguishing trans-
fers of financial assets that are sales from transfers
that are borrowings. SFAS 125 also requires that liabil-
ities and derivatives incurred or obtained as part of a
transfer be measured initially at fair value. This state-
ment also provides guidance on measurement of servic-
ing rights on assets transferred and derecognition of
liabilities transferred. SFAS 125 is effective for all
transfers, servicing, or extinguishments occurring after
December 31, 1996, except for certain provisions relat-
ing to the accounting for secured borrowings and collat-
eral and the accounting for transfers and servicing of
repurchase agreements, dollar rolls, securities lending
and similar transactions, for which the effective date
was deferred until January 1, 1998, in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 127,
“Deferral of the Effective Date of Certain Provisions of
FASB Statement No. 125” (“SFN 127”). The Company
adopted these standards effective January 1, 1997 and
January 1, 1998. The adoption of these standards did
not have a material impact on the financial condition
or results of operations of the Bank.

In June 1997, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Incomen
(“SFN 130”). SFN 130 establishes standards for report-
ing and display of comprehensive income and its compo-
nents in a W set of general purpose financial statements.
SFM 130 requires that financial statements report and
display comprehensive income in the same prominence as
net income, but permits the statement of comprehensive
_@come to be presented either together with or apart from
the income statement. Comprehensive income, as defined
by SFN 130 includes revenues, expenses, and gains and
losses which, under current GM, bypass net income and
are typically reported as a component of stockholders’
equity. SFAS 130 ia applicable for all entities which pre-
sent a full set of financial statements and is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 1997, with early
adoption permitted. Management is currently evaluating
SFM 130.

In June 1997, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 131, “Disclosures About Segments of
an Enterprise and Related Information” (“SFAS 13 l“).
SFAS 131 introduces a new method for segment report-
ing referred to as the “management approach,” which
focuses upon the manner in which the chief operating
decision makers organize segments within a company
for making operating decisions and assessing petiormance.
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Under the management approach, reportable segments
can be based upon, but are not limited to, products and
services, geography and legal or management structure.
SFM 131 requires full financial disclosure for each
segment, but only requires limited quarterly segment
disclosure. SFN 131 is applicable for all public, for-profit
companies, and is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 1997, with early application encouraged.
Management of the Company is currently evaluating
SFAS 131.

In February 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 132, “Disclosures About Pensions and
Other Postretirement Benefits” (“SFAS 132”). SFAS 132
amends disclosure requirements related to pension
and other postretirement benefits previously required
under Statements of Financial Accounts Standards
Nos. 87, 88 and 106. SFAS 132 does not change the
measurement or recognition of these plans. Adoption of
SFAS 132 is required for all fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 1997.

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 133”):
SFAS 133 requires that entities recognize all derivatives
as either assets or liabilities in the statement of finan-
cial condition and measure those instruments at fair
value. Under SFAS 133 an entity may designate a
derivative as a hedge of exposure to either changes in:
(a) fair value of a recognized asset or liability or firm
commitment, (b) cash flows of a recognized or forecasted
transaction, or (c) foreign currencies of a net investment
in foreign operations, firm commitments, available-for-
sale securities or a forecasted transaction. Depending
upon the effectiveness of the hedge andor the transac-
tion being hedged, any changes in the fair value of the
derivative instrument is either recognized in earnings
in the current year, deferred to future periods, or recog-
nized in other comprehensive income: Changes in the
fair value of all derivative instruments not recognized
as hedge accounting are recognized in current year
earnings. Adoption of SFAS 133 is required for all fiscal
quarters or fiscal years beginning after June 15, 1999.
Adoption of SFAS 133 is not expected to have an impact
upon the Company’s consolidated financial condition or
results of operations.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial
Statements — The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assump-
tions that affect the reported amounts of assets and lia-
bilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Areas in the accompanying financial statements where
estimates are significant include the allowance for loans
losses, the carrying value of other real estate, purchase
accounting adjustments related to the acquisition of
Conestoga and the fair value of financial instruments.

Reclassification — Certain June 30, 1997 and 1996
amounts have been reclassified to cotiorm to the June 30,
1998 presentation.

2. CONVERSION TO STOCK FORM
OF OWNERSHIP

On November 2, 1995, the Board of Directors of the
Bank adopted a Plan of Conversion to convert from
mutual to stock form. As part of the conversion, the
Company was incorporated under Delaware law for the
purpose of acquiring and holding all of the outstanding
stock of the Bank. On June 26, 1996, the Company com-
pleted its initial public offering and issued 14,547,500
shares of common stock (par value $0.01 per share) at a
price of $10.00 per share, resulting in net proceeds of
approximately $141,368 prior to the acquisition of stock
by the Employee Stock Ownership Plan. The Company
retained approximately $53,397 of the net proceeds and
used the remaining net proceeds to purchase all of the
outstanding stock of the Bank. Costs related to the con-
version were charged against the Company’s proceeds
from the sale of the stock.

At the time of conversion, the Bank established
a liquidation account in an amount equal to the
retained earnings of the Bank as of the date of the
most recent financial statements contained in the
final conversion prospectus. The liquidation account
will be reduced annually to the extent that eligible
account holders have reduced their qualifying deposits
as of each anniversary date. Subsequent increases
will not restore an eligible account holder’s interest in
the liquidation account. In the event of a complete liq-
uidation, each eligible account holder will be entitled
to receive a distribution from the liquidation account
in an amount proportionate to the current adjusted
qualifying balances for accounts then held.

As discussed in Note 3, the Company acquired
Conestoga Bancorp, Inc. on June 26, 1996. The liquida-
tion account previously established by Conestoga’s sub-
sidiary, Pioneer Savings Bank, F.S.A. during its initial
public offering in March 1993, was assumed by the
Company in the acquisition.

The Bank may not declare or pay cash dividends on or
repurchase any of its shares of common stock if the effect
thereof wodd cause stockholders’ equity to be reduced
below applicable regu.latiry capital maintenance require-
ments, the amomt required for the liquidation account, or
if such declaration and payment wotid otherwise violate
regulatory requirements.

3. ACQUISITION OF CONESTOGA BANCORP-INC.
On June 26, 1996, the Bank completed the acquisition

of Conestoga Bancorp, Inc., the holding company for
Pioneer Savings Bank, F.S.B. The Bank received approxi-
mately $170,836, $124,411 and $111,991 of investment
securities, mortgage-backed securities and loans, respec-
tively at fair value and assumed approximately $394,250
of customer deposit liabilities. Approximately $10,000 of
investment securities acquired were classified as held-to-
maturity at June 30, 1996. All other securities acquired
were classified as available for sale. Total cash paid
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for the acquisition was $101,272. The goodwill gener-
ated in the transaction of $28,438 is being amortized
on a straight-line basis over 12 years for financial
reporting purposes.

This acquisition was recorded using the purchase.
method of accountin~ accordingly, the purchase price is
allocated to the respective assets acquired and liabilities
assumed based on their estimated fair values.

All operations of Conestoga acquired by the Bd.are
reflected in the consolidated statement of operations of
the Company for the years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997.
The consolidated statements of financial condition as of
June 30, 1998 and 1997 include the assets acquired from
Conestoga. The information below presents, on an unau-
dited pro forma basis, the consolidated statement of oper-
ations for the Company for the year ended June 30, 1996.
All tiormation below is adjusted for the acquisition of
Conestoga, as if the transaction had been consummated
on July 1, 1995.

Pro Forma for Year Ended June 30, 1996
Net interest income $43,129
Provision for possible loan losses 3,083
Non-interest income ~3,965
Non-interest expense:

Wodwill amortization 2,350
Other non-interest expense 20>540

Total non-interest expense 22,890”
Income before income taxes $21,121

4. INVESTMENT SECURITIES HELD-TO-
MATURITY ~ AVMWLE FOR SALE

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and losses
and estimated market value of investment securities
held-to-maturity at June 30, 1998 were as follows:

Investment Securities Held-to-Mat&ty

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unredzed Market

cost Gains hsses— Value
Debt Securities:
U.S. Treasurysecurities

andobligationsofU.S.
Governmentcorporations
andagencies $64,448 $412 $(49) $64,811

Obligationsof stateand
politicalsubdivisions 1,899 43 — 1,942

Corporatesecurities 11,494 96 — 11,590
Public utilities 250 — — 250

$78,091 $551 $(49) $78,593

The amortized cost and estimated market value of
investment securities held-to-maturity at June 30, 1998,
by contractual maturity, are shown below. Expected
maturities may differ from contractual maturities
because issuers may have the right to call or prepay
obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Estimated
Amortized Market

cost Value
Due in one year or less $9,224 $_9,233”
Due after one year through five years 65,568 66>03-4
Due after five years through ten years 3,299 3,326

$78,091 $78,593
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During the year ended June 30, 1998, proceeds from
the calls of investment securities held-to-maturity totaled
$42,500. Again of $9 resulted on these calls. There were
no sales of investment securities held-to-maturity during
the year ended June 30, 1998.

—

The amortized/historical cost, gross unrealized gains and
losses and estimated market value of investment securities
available for sale at June 30, 1998 were as follows:

Investment Securities Available for Sale
Amortizeti Gross Gross Estimated
Historical Unrealized Unrealized Market

cost Gains Losses Value

Debt securities:
U.S. Treasury securities

and obligations of
U.S. Government
corporationsand agencies $28,377 $ 133 $ (19) $28.491

Corporate securities 37,494 295
Public utitities

(43) 37;746
6,844 14 (64) 6,794

72.715 442 (126) 73.031
Equity securities: 10;425 2,317 ‘ (67) 1~676

$83,140 $2,759 $(193) $85,706

The amortized cost and estimated market value of
investment securities available for sale at June 30, 1998,
by contractual maturity, are shown below. Expected
maturities may differ from contractual maturities
because issuers may have the right to call or prepay
obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Estimated
Amortized Market

cost Value
Due in one year or less $10,008 $10,005
Due after one year through five years 59,066 59,401
Due after five years through ten years 3,641 3,625

$72,715 $73,03i

.
During the year ended June 30, 1998, proceeds from

the sales and calls of investment securities available
for sale totaled $13,437 and $11,500, respectively. A
gain of $520 resulted from the sales. No gain or loss
resulted from the calls.

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and losses
and estimated market value of investment securities
held-to-maturity at June 30, 1997 were as follows:

I
Investment Securities Held-to-Maturity

Gross Gross Estimated –
AmortizedUnrealized Unrealized Market

cost Gains Losses Value

Debt securities:
U.S. Treasury securities

and obligations of
U.S. Government
corporationsand agencies $ 86,036 $498

Obligations of state and
$(116) $86,418

political subdivisions 1,974 43 — 2.017
Corporate securities 13;327 28 (14) 13;341
Public utilities 250 — (2) 248

$101,587 $569 $(132) $102,024 ‘--
.

During the year “ended June 30, 1997, proceeds from
the calls of investment securities held-to-maturity
totaled $5,000. No gain or loss was recognized on these
calls. There were no sales of investment securities
held-to-maturity during the year ended June 30, 1997.

I
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The amortized/historical cost, gross unrealized gains and
losses and estimated market value of investment securities
available for sale at June 30, 1997 were as follows:

Investment Securities Available for Sde
Amortized/ Gross Gross Estiiated
Historical U~ealized Unrealized Market

cost Gains Losses Value
Debt securities:
U.S. fieasury securities

and obligations of
U.S. Government
corporationsand agencies $33,706 $ 130 $(28) $33,808

Corporate securities 17,471 277 (5) 17,743
Public utilities 1,249 12 (14) 1.247

52,426 419 (47) 52,798
Equity securities 4,912 980 (3) 5,889

$57.338 $1.399 $(50) $58.687

During the year ended June 30, 1997, proceeds from
the sales and calls of investment securities available
for sale totaled $27,253 and $26,011, respectively. A
loss of $273 and gain of $11 were recognized from the
sales and calls, respectively.

5. MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES ~LD-
TO-MATURITY AND AVAILABLE FOR SALE

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and losses
and the estimated market value of mortgage-backed secu-
rities held-to-maturity at June 30, 1998 were as follows:

MortgageBackedSecuritiesHeld-bMatity
Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market
Cost Geine Losses Value

GNMA pass-through
certificates i 7,364 $344 $- $7,708

FHLMC pass-through
certificates 23,086 229 (11) 23,304

FNMA pass-through ---
certificates 16,264 173 (6) 16;431

$46.714 $746 $(17) $47.443

Proceeds from the sales of mortgage-backed securities
held-to-maturity were $5,317 during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1998. Again of $175 was recognized from
these sales. The unpaid principal of the securities at the
dates of sale was less than 15% of their acquired par
value, and thus are permissible sales under SFN 115.

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and lossei
and the estimated market value of mortgage-backed secu-
rities available for sale at June 30, 1998 were as follows:

Mortgage-BackedSetities Availablefor Sale
Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized UnrealizedUnrealized M~ket
Cost Gains Losses Value

Collateralized mortgage
obligations $255,334 $1,072 $(230) $256,176

GNMA pass-through
certificates 80,525 1,473 — 81,998

FHLMC pass-through
certificates 8,692 34 (14) 8,712

FNMA ~ass-throuph

Proceeds born the calls and sales of mortgage-backed
securities avaiIable for sale were $92,776 during the
year ended June 30, 1998. A gain of $428 was reco~zed
on these sales.

me amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and losses
and the estimated market value of mortgage-backed secu-
rities held-to-maturity at June 30, 1997 were as follows

Mortgage-BackedSecuritiesHeld-to-Maturi@
Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market
cost Gains hsses Value

GNMA pass-through
certKlcates $15,100 $562 $ (2) $15,660

FHLMC pass-through
certificates 40,528 127 (56) 40,599

FNMA pass-through
certificates 22,760 120 (64) 22,816

$78,388 $809 $(12.2) $79,075

There were no sales of mortgage-backed securities held-
to-maturity during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997.

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and losses
and the estimated market value of mortgage-backed secu-
rities available for sale at June 30, 1997 were as follows:

Mortgage-Backed8ecuritiesAvailablefor Sale
Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market
Cost Gains Losses Value

Collateralized mortgage
obligations $72,343 $ 333

GNMA pass-through
$(176) $72,500

certificates 88,874 1,903 (6) 90,771
FHLMC pass-through

certificates 17,698 293 (54) 17,937
FNMA pass-through

certticates - 48,861 416 (348) 48,929-
$227,~76 $2,945 $(584) $230,137

Proceeds from the sale of mortgage-backed securi-
ties available for sale were $16,713 during the year
ended June 30, 1997. A gain of $495 was recognized
on these sales.

6. LOANS
The Company’s real estate loans are comprised of

the following

At June 30. 199s 1997
One-to-four family ‘ $125,163 $140,536
Multi-family and underlying cooperative 717,638 498,536
Nonresidential 50,062 43,180
F.H.A. and V. A. insured mortgage loans 11.934 14.153.-
Co-op loans 42;553 50;931

947,350 747,336
Net unearned fees (3.486) (3.090)

$943.864 $744.246

certificates 16,821 208 (40) 16,9S9

$361.372 $2.787 $(284) $363.875
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The Bank originates both adjustable and fixed interest
rate real estate loans. At June 30, 1998, the approximate
composition of these loans was as follows:

Fixed Rate Variable Rate
Period to Maturity Period to Maturity
or Next Repricing- Book Value or Next Repricing Book Value
1 month-1 year $ 16,520 1 month–1 year $127,240-
1 year–3 years 22,939 1 year–3 years 118,181
3 years-5 years 7,317 3 years–5 years 241,405
5 years–10 years 209,855 5 years-10 years 130,415
Over 10 years 73,478 Over 10 years —

$330,109 $617,241

The adjustable rate loans have interest rate adjust-
ment limitations and are generally indexed to the
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York (“FHLBNY”)
five-year borrowing funds rate, the one-year constant
maturity Treasury index, or the Federal Home Loan-
Bank national mortgage contract rate.

A concentration of credit risk exists within the Bank’s
loan portfolio, as the majority of real estate loans are
collateralized by properties located in New York City
and Long Island.

The Company’s other loans are comprised of
the following:

At June 30, 1998 1997
Student loans $ 677 $1,005
Passbook loans (secured by

savings and time deposits) 2,367 2,801
Home improvement loans 1,753 1,243
Consumer installment and other loans 919 1.027

5,716 6,076
Unearneddiscount — —

$5,716 $6,076

Loans on which the accrual of interest has been discon-
tinued were $884 and $3,190 at June 30, 1998 and 1997,
respectively. If interest on those loans had been accrued,
interest income wodd have been increased by approxi-
mately $51 and $247 for the years ended June 30, 1998
and 1997, respectively.

The Bank had outstanding loans considered troubled-
debt restructurings of $3,971 and $4,671 at June 30,
1998 and 1997, respectively. Income recognized on these
loans was approximately $306 and $357 for the years
ended June 30, 1998 and 1997, respectively, compared
to interest income of $415 and $471 calculated under the
original terms of the loans, for the years ended Jm-e 30,
1998 and 1997, respectively.

The recorded investment in loans for which impairment
has been recognized under the guidance of SFAS 114
was approximately $3,136 and $4,294 at June 30, 1998
and 1997, respectively. The average balance of impaired
loans was approximately $3,838 and $4,736 for the
years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997, respectively.
Write-downs of $45 and $985 were taken on impaired
loans during the years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997,
respectively. At June 30, 1998 and 1997, specific

reserves totaling $23 and $122 were allocated tithin
the allowance for loan losses for impaired loans. Net
principal received and interest income recognized on
impaired loans during the years ended June 30, 1998
and 1997 were not material. At June 30, 1998 and
1997, one loan totaling $2,681, was deemed impaired

-for which no reserves have been provided. This loan,
which is included in troubled-debt restructurings at
June 30, 1998 and 1997, has performed in accordance
with the provisions of the restructuring agreement
signed in October 1995. The loan was on accrual status
at both June 30, 1998 and 1997. All other loans deemed
im~aired. which total three and six loans as of June 30.
1958 and 1997, respectively, have reserves allocated ‘
towards their outstanding balance.

The following assumptions were utilized in evaluat-
ing the loan portfolio pursuant to the provisions of
SFN 114:

Homogeneous Loans — One-to-four family residential
mortgage loans and loans on cooperative apartments
having a balance of less than $227 and consumer loans
are considered to be small balance homogeneous loan
pools and, accordingly, are not covered by SFAS 114.

Loans Evaluated for Impairment — All non-homoge-
neous loans greater than $1,000 are individually evalu-
ated for potential impairment. Additionally, residential
mortgage loans exceeding $227 and delinquent in excess

‘of 60 days are evaluated for impairment. A loan is con-
sidered impaired when it is probable that all contractual
amounts due will not be collected in accordance with
the terms of the loan. A loan is not deemed to be -
impaired if a delay in receipt of payment is expected
to be less than 30 days or if, during a longer period of
delay, the Bank expects to collect all amounts due,
including interest accrued at the contractual rate dur-
ing the period of the delay. Factors considered by
management include the property location, economic
conditions, and any unique circumstances affecting the
loan. Except as noted above, at June 30, 1998 and 1997,
all impaired loans were on nonaccrual status. In a“ddi-
tion, at June 30, 1998 and 1997, respectively, approxi-
mately $428 and $1,577 of one-to-four family residential
mortgage loans, loans on cooperative apartments and
consumer loans with a balance of less than $227 were
on nonaccrual status. These loans are considered as a
homogeneous loan pool not covered by SFN 114.

Reserves and Charge-Offs — The Bank allocates a portion
of its total allowance for loan losses to loans deemed
impaired under SFAS 114. All charge-offs on impaired
loans are recorded as a reduction in both loan principal
and the allowance for loan losses. Management evaluates
the adequacy of its allowance for loan losses on a regular
basis. At June 30, 1998, management believes that its
allowance is adequate to provide for losses inherent in
the total loan portfolio, including impaired loans.
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Measurement of Impairment — Since ~1 impaired loans
are collateralized by real estate properties, the fair value
of the collateral is utilized to measure impairment.

Income Recognition — Accrual of interest is discontin-
ued on loans identified as impaired and past due ninety
days. Subsequent cash receipts are applied initially to
the outstanding loan principal balance. Additional
receipts beyond the recorded outstanding balance at the
time interest is discontinued are recorded as recoveries
in the Bank’s allowance for loan losses.

7. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES AND POSSIBLE
LOSSES ON OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED
Changes in the allowance for loan losses were as follows:

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 1997 1996
Balance at beginning of period $10,726 $7,812 $5,174
Provision charged to operations 1,635 4,200 2,979
Loans charged off (328) (1.388) 0j023)
Recoveries 42 ‘102’ 14
Reserve acquired in purchase

of Conestopa — — 668.
$12,075 $10,726 $7,812

Changes in the allowance for possible losses on real
estate owned were as follows:

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 1997 1996
Balance at beginning of period $187 $:g_$–
Provision charged to operations 114 586
Charge-offs, net of rec~veries (137) (377) (472)

$164 $187 $114

Prior to July 1, 1995, no valuation allowance for pos-
sible losses on Other real estate owned was maintained
by the Bank.

8. MORTGAGE SERVICING ACTMTIES
At June 30, 1998 and 1997, the Bank was servicing

loans for others having principal amounts outstanding
of approximately $58,619 and $69,648, respectively.
Servicing loans for others generally consists of collecting
mortgage payments, maintaining escrow accounts, dis-
bursing payments to investors and foreclosure ,process-
ing. In connection with these loans serviced for others,
the Bank held borrowers’ escrow balances of approxi-
mately $569, $652 and $1,055 at June 30, 1998, 1997
and 1996, respectively.

9. PREMISES ~ FIKED ASSETS
The following is a summary of premises and fixed assets:

At June 30, 199s “i997
Land $ 2,164 $ 3,964-
Buildings 11,753 12,778
Leasehold improvements 1,282 1,190
Furniture and equipment 6,503 7,105

21.702 25,037
Less: accumulated a~~reciation. .

and amortization (10,96O) (11,042)
$10,742 $13,995

Depreciation and amortization expense amounted to
approximately $964, $1,076 and $501 for the years
ended June 30, 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively.

10. FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK
OF NEW YO~ CAPIT& STOCK

The Bank is a Savings Bank Member of the FHLBN.
Membership requires the purchase of shares of FHLBNY
capital stock at $100 per share. The Bank owned
107,535 and 83,215 shares at June 30, 1998 and 1997,
respectively. The FHLBNY paid dividends on the capi-
tal stock of 7.2%, 6.4% and 6.990 during the years
ended June 30, 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively.

11. DUE TO DEPOSITORS
The deposit accounts of each deposit household are

imured up to $100 by either the Bank Insurance Fund
or the Savings Association Insurance Fund of the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).

Deposits are summarized as follows:

June 30, 1998 1997
Effective Effective

cost Liability cost Liability
Savingsaccounts 2.27% $ 340,481 2.27% $344,377
Certificatesof deposit 5.84 612,328 5.61 541,773
Moneymarketaccounts 3.09 30,567 2.96 33,530
NOWand

super NOWaccounts 1.24 17,927 1.24 16,324
Non-interest-bearing

checkingaccounts — 37,039 — 27,391
4.30% $1,038,342 4.09% $963,395”

The distribution of certificates of deposits by remaining
maturity was as follows:

At June 30, 1998 1997
Maturity in three months or less $139,108 $116,828
Over 3 through 6 months 103,472 88,912
Over 6 through 12 months 163,791 107,714
Over 12 months 205,957 228,319
Total cetiificates of deposit $612,328 $541,773

The aggregate amount of Certificates of deposits
with a minimum denomination of $100 was approxi-
mately $60,259 and $46,806 at June 30, 1998 and
1997, respectively.

12. SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS
TO REPURCHASE

Presented below is information concerning securities
sold with agreement to repurchase:

At or for the Year Ended June 30, 1998 1997
Balance outstanding at end of period $256,601 $76,333
Average interest cost at end of period 5.74% 5.69%
Average balance outstanding $145,676 $32,374
Average interest cost during the year 5.95% 5.73%
Cmying value of underlying collateral $267,469 $83,778
Estimated market value of

underlying collateral $268,991 $84,172
Maximum balance outstanding

at month end during period $256,601 $76,333
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13. FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK
OF NEW YORK ADVMCES

The Bank had borrowings (“Advances”) from the
FHLBNY totaling $103,505 and $63,210 at June 30,
1998 and 1997, respectively. The average cost of FHLB
advances was 6.04% and 5.79%, respectively, during the
years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997, and the average
interest rate on outstanding FHLB advances was 6.05%
and 6.18%, respectively, at June 30, 1998 and 1997. At
June 30, 1998, in accordance with the Advances,
Collateral Pledge and Security Agreement, the Bank
maintained in excess of $113,856 of quali&ng collateral
(principally bonds and mortgage-backed securities), as
defined, to secure such advances.

14. INCOME TAXES
The Company’s Federal, State and City income tax

provisions were comprised of the following:

YearEnded
June30, 1668 1997 19a

state state stab
and and and

Federd City Total Federal City ‘IbtalFederal City lbtal
Current @,687 $2,698$11,365 $6,047$4,541$10,588 $4,218$2,563$6,781
Defined 776 (295) 461 2,153 (5,150) (2,997) (332) (268) (600)

$9,463$2,463 $11)866 $8,200$ (609)$ 7,591 $3,886$2,295$6,181

In accordance with SFN 109, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recorded for temporary differences between
the book and tax bases of assets and liabilities.

The components of Federal and net State and City
deferred income tax assets and liabilities were as follows:

At June 30, 1998 1997
State State-

and and
Federal City Federal City

Deferred tax assets:
Excessbookbaddebtover

tax baddebtreserve
Net operating

$2,990 $2,188 $2,417 $1,880

106scarryforward — — 305 —
Employeebenefitplans 2,858 1,682 735 44s
Taz effect of purchase

accounting fair
value adjustments 366 216 1,173 715

Other 147 119
Total deferred tax assets 6,214 4.086 4.777 3.162
Less: Valuation allowance ‘ ‘

on deferred tax assets — — — —

Deferred tax assets after
valuation allowance -$6,214 $4,086 $4,777 $3,162

Deferred tax liabilities:
Undistributed’earnings

of subsidiary $1,677 $ 358 $ – $ –
Difference in book and

tax carrying value
of freed assets 412 245 265 164

Tax effect of unrealized
gain on securities
available for sale 1,436 871 1,057

Other
623

122 7 — –—

During the year ended June 30, 1998, deferred tax
liabilities include an increase of $627 resuIting from
adjustments pursuant to SFAS 115.

The provision for income taxes differed from that
computed at the Federal statutory rate as follows:

YearEndedJune 30, 1998 1997 1996
Taxat Federalstatutoryrate $8,737 $6,967 $4,717
Stateandlocal taxes,net of

Federalincometax benefit 1,562 (396) 1,492
Goodwillamortization 843 843 —
Amortizationof excessfair

valueovercost- ESOPstock 532 233 —
Reservefor losseson sale of loans — — —
Utilizationof capital10ss

on sale of securities —
Other,net 193 (;) (2;)

$11,867 $7,591 $6,181
Effectivetax rate 47.537. 38.1370 45.9%

Savings banks that meet certain definitions, tests,
and other conditions prescribed by the Internal Revenue
Code are allowed to deduct, with limitations, a bad debt
deduction. Prior to August 1996, this deduction could be
computed as a percentage of taxable income before such
deduction (“PTI Method”) or based upon actual loss expe-
rience for Federal, New York State and New York City
income taxes.

Pursuant to SFAS 109, the Bank is not required to
provide deferred taxes on its tax loan loss reserve as of
December 31, 1987 (“base year reserve”). The amount
of this reserve on which no deferred taxes have been
provided is approximately $12,153. This reserve codd
be recognized as taxable income and create a current
tax liability using the income tax rates then in effect if
one of the following occur: 1) the Bank’s retained earn-
ings represented by the reserve is used for purposes
other than to absorb losses from bad debts, including
dividends or distributions in liquidation; 2) the Bank
fails to quali& as a Bank as provided by the Internal
Revenue Cod% or 3) there is a change in federal tax law.

On August 20, 1996, Federal legislation was signed into
law which repealed the reserve method of accounting for
bad debts, including the percentage of taxable income
method used by the Bank. This repeal is effective for the
Bank’s taxable year beginning January 1, 1996. In addi-
tion, the legislation requires the Bank to include in tax-
able income its bad debt reserves in excess of its base
year reserve over a 6 to 8 year period depending upon the
maintenance of certain loan origination levels. Since the
percentage of taxable income method tax bad debt deduc-
tion and the corresponding increase in the tax bad debt
reserve in excess of the base year have been treated as
temporary differences pursuant to SFAS 109, this change
in tax law will have no effect on the Company’s future
consolidated statement of operations. Since the Bank’s
bad debt reserve exceeds its base year reserve by $3,100,
approximately $176 will be currently payable as a restit
of the legislation.

Total deferred tax liabilities $3,647 $1,481 $1,322 $ 787
Net deferredk aaset(liability) $2,567 $2,605 $3,455 $2,375
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In anticipation of the Federal legislation, on July 30,
1996, New York State (the “State”) enacted legislation,
effective January 1, 1996, which generally retains the
percentage of taxable income method for computing
allowable bad debt deductions and does not require the
Bank to recapture into income State tax bad debt
reserves unless one of the following events occur: 1) the
Bank’s retained earnings represented by the reserve is
used for purposes other than to absorb losses horn bad
debts, including dividends in excess of the Bank’s earn-
ings and profits or distributions in liquidation or in
redemption of stock, 2) the Bank fails to quali~ as a
thrift as provided by the State tax law; or 3) there is a
change in State tax law. The Bank had a deferred tax
liability of approximately $1.9 million recorded for the
excess of State tax bad debt reserves over its reserve at
December 31, 1987 in accordance with SFAS 109. In
December 1996, after evaluating the State tax legisla-
tion, as well as relevant accounting literature ad indus-
try practices, management of the Bank concluded that
this liability was no longer required to be recorded, and
recovered the full deferred tax liability. This recovery
resulted in a reduction of income tax expense during
the year ended June 30, 1997 for the full amount of
the recovered deferred tax liability.

On March 11, 1997, New York City enacted legislation,
effective January 1, 1996, which conformed its tax law
regarding bad debt deductions b New York State’s t=-law.
Aa a restit of this legislation, the Bank, in March 1997,
recovered a deferred tax liability of approximately $1.0
million previously recorded for the excess of New York City
tax bad debt reserves over ita reserve at December 31,
1987. This recovery restited in a reduction of income tax
expense during the year ended June 30, 1997 for the W
amount of the recovered deferred tax liability.

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
Employee Retirement Plan — The Bank is a partigip+t
in a noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan with
the RSI Retirement Trust. Substantially all full-time
employees are eligible for participation after one year
of service. In addition, a participant must be at least 21
years of age at the date of enrollment, During the year
ended June 30, 1998, the Bank offered an early retire-
ment program to all Plan participants who met certain
eligibility criterion. Aa a result of the early retirement
program, a non-recurring charge of $1,611 was recorded.

The retirement cost for the pension plan includes the
following components (including, for 1998, a non-r;cfig
charge of $1,611 related to an early retirement program):

For the Year Ended June 30, 199s 1997 1996
Service cost $ 332 $400 ‘$ 206
kterest cost 781 727 4s8
Actual return on plan assets (2,931) (83S) (w–
Net amortization and deferral 1,s43 (224) (82)
ExDenseassociated with early

;etirement program “- 1,611 —

Net periodic cost $1,636

~65-

$ 66
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The funded status of the plan was as follows:

At June 30. 1998 1997
Accumulated benefit obligation,

including vested benefits of
$11,428 ~nd $8,976, respectively $11,490 $9,031

Projected benefit obligation $12,675 $10,015
Plan assets at fair vaiue

(investments in trust fi.mds
managed by RSI and commingled
New York State Retirement Fund) 13.599 11.121

Excess of plan assets over projected
benefit obligation 924 1,106

Additional employer contribution — 126
Unrecognized loss from eWerience

different from that assumed 560 380
Unrecognized transition asset (72)
Unrecognized net past service liability (20;) (239)
Accrued liability related to early

retirement program (1,611) –

(Accrued) prepaid retirement expense
included in Other (liabilities) assets $ (334) $1.301

Major assumptions utilized were as follows:

At June 30, 1998 1997
Discount rate 6.75% 8.00%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 4.50 6.00
Expected long-term return on plan assets 9.00 9.00

Bemfit Maintemnce Plan and Directors’ Retirewnt Plan —
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994, the Bank
established a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan
~SERP) for its executive officers. The SERP was
established to compensate the executive officers for any
curtailments in benefits due to the statutory limita-
tions on benefit plans. The SERP exists as a nonquali-
fied plan which supplements the existing qualified
plans. Defined benefit and defined contribution costs
are incurred annually related to the SERP. During the
year ended June 30, 1997, the SERP was renamed the
Benefit Maintenance Plan C’BMP), and sponsorship
was transferred to the Company. As of June 30, 1998,
the Benefit Maintenance Plan has an investment in the
Company’s common stock of $431.

Effective July 1, 1996, the Company established a
non-qualified Retirement Plan for all of its outside
directors, which will provide benefits to each eligible
outside director commencing upon his termination of
Board service or at age 65. Each outside director who
serves or has agreed to serve as an outside director
will automatically become a participant in the Plan.

The retirement cost for the defined benefit portion of
the BMP and Directors’ Retirement plan include the
following components:

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 1997 1996
Service cost $104 $203 $56
Interest cost 248 211 88
Net amortization and deferral 170 17s 49

$522 $592 $193



Tb.e defined contribution costs incurred by the Bank
related to the BMP/SERP for the years ended June 30,
1998, 1997 and 1996 were $522, $305 and $25, respec-
tively. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, ben-
efits related to the Employee Stock Ownership Plan
were added to the defined contribution cost of the BMP.

The funded status of the defined benefit portion of
the plans was as follows:

At June 30. 1998 1997
Accumulated benefit obligation,

including vested benefits of
$1,999 a~d $1,530, respectively $2,278 $1,808

Proiected benefit obligation $3,562 $3,276
Pla; assets at fair vaiue — —

Deficiency of plan assets over
projected benefit obligation (3,562) (3,276)

Unrecognized loss from experience
different from that assumed 1,443 834-

Unrecognized net past service liability 535 1,350
Accrued expense prior to additional

—

minimum liabilitv included in
other liabilities (1,584) (1,092)

Additional minimum liability (860) (931)
Accrued expense after minimum liability $(2,444) $(2,023)

Major assumptions utilized were as follows:

At June 30, 1998 1997
Directors’ Directors’

Retirement - Retirement
BMP Plan BMP Plan

Discountrate 6.75% 6.50q0 7.50% 7.25%
Rate of increase in

compensation levels 4.50 4.00 5.50 4.00”-

401@) Plan — The Bank also has a 401(k) plan which
covers substantially all employees. Prior to May 31,
1996, under such plan the Bank matched 50% of each
participant’s contribution up to 6% of the participant’s
annual compensation for the first four years of particip-
ation and thereafter 100% of the participant’s contri-
bution up to a maximum of 6%. Effective May 31, 1996,
the plan was amended whereby the Bank ceased all
contributions to the plan. Participation in the 401(k)
plan is voluntary. A salaried employee becomes eligible
for the plan after completion of one year of service. The
Bank contributed approximately $181 to the plan for
the year ended June 30, 1996. The 401(k) plan owns
participant investments in the Company’s common stock
which totaled $6,630, $4,758 and $2,092 at June 30,
1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively.

Postretirement Benefits other than Pensions — The Ba&
offers additional postretirement benefits to its retired___
employees who have provided at least five (5) consecu-
tive years of credited service and were active employees
prior to April 1, 1991, as follows:

(1) Employees who retired prior to April 1, 1991 receive
full medical coverage in effect until their death at no
cost to such retirees;

(2) Eligible employees retiring after April 1,1991 will
be eli~ble for continuation of their medicaI coverage
in effect at the time of such employees’ retirement
until their death. Throughout an employee’s retire-
ment, the Bank will continue to pay the premiums
for this coverage up to the premium amount paid for
thefmst year of retirement coverage. Should the
premiums increase, the employee will have to pay
the differential to maintain full medical coverage.

Postretirement medical benefits are only available to
those full-time employees who, upon termination of ser-
vice, start collecting retirement benefits immediately
from the Bank. The Bank reserves the right at any time,
and to the extent permitted by law, to change, terminate
or discontinue any of the group benefits, and can exercise
the maximum discretion permitted by law, in administer-
ing, interpreting, me-g or tting any other action
with respect to the plan or benefits.

The Bank accrues the cost of such benefits during the
years an employee renders the necessary service. The
Bank adopted SFAS 106 effective July 1, 1995. The
Bank elected to record the full accumulated postretire-
ment benefit obligation upon adoption. This resulted in
a cumulative effect adjustment of $1,032 (after reduc-
tion for income taxes of $879), which is shown in the
consolidated statement of income for the year ended
June 30, 1996.

The postretirement cost includes the following
components:

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 1997
Service cost $37 $75
Interest cost 178 192
Unrecognized past service liability (29) —

$186 $267

The funded status of the postretirement benefit plan
was as follows:

At June 30, 1998 1997
Accumtiated benefit obligation:

Retirees $1,503 $1,229
FUUYeligibleactiveparticipants 514 163
Otheractiveparticipants 697 963

Total 2,714 2,355
Planassetsat fairvalue — —

Deficiencyofplanassetsover
accumtiatedbenefitobligation 2,714 2,355

Unrecognizedloss(gain)fromexperience
differentfromthat assumed (7) 191

Accruedpostretirementbenefitobligation $2,721 $2,546

The assumed medical cost trend rates used in com-
puting the accumulated postretirement benefit obliga-
tion was 7.0% in 1998 and was assumed to decrease
gradually to 5.0% in 2003 and to remain at that level
thereafter. Increasing the assumed medical care cost
trend rates by 1% in each year would increase the
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation by
approximately $137.
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The assumed discount rate and rate of compensation
increase used to measure the accumulated postretire-
ment benefit obligation at June 30, 1998 were 6.75%
and 4.5%, respectively. The assumed discount rate and
rate of compensation increase used to measure the accu-
mulated postretirement benefit obligation at June 30,
1997 were 8.0% and 6.0%, respectively.

Employee Stock Ownership Plan — In connection ‘tith
the conversion, the Board of Directors of the Company
adopted the Dime Community Bancshares Employee
Stock Ownership Plan (the “ESOP”). The ESOP bor-
rowed $11,638 from the Company and used the funds
to purchase 1,163,800 shares of the Company’s common
stock. The loan will be repaid principally from the
Bank’s discretionary contributions to the ESOP over a
period of time not to exceed 10 years. The Bank’s oblig-
ation to make such contributions is reduced by any
investment earnings realized on such contributions or
any dividends paid by the Company on stock held in
the unallocated account. The loan had an outstanding
balance of $9,175 and $10,324, respectively, at June 30,
1998 and 1997, and a fixed rate of 8.0%.

Shares purchased with the loan proceeds are held in
a suspense account for allocation among participants as
the loan is repaid. Contributions to the ESOP and
shares released from the suspense account are allocated
among participants on the basis of compensation, as
described in the plan, in the year of allocation. The
ESOP vests at a rate of 25% per year of service begin-
ning after two years with full vesting after five years,
or upon attainment of age 65, death, disability, retire-
ment or in the event of a “change of control” of the
Company as defined in the ESOP. Shares of common
stock allocated to participating employees totaled “
116,380 and 121,702 during the years ended Jtine 30;
1998 and 1997. The ESOP benefit expense recorded in
accordance with SOP 93-6 for allocated shares totaled
$2,670 and $1,883, respectively, for the years ended
June 30,1998 and 1997.

Stock Benefit Plans

Recognition and Retention’ Plan rRRP) — In Dectiber
1996, the shareholders approved the RRP, which is
designed to encourage key officers and directors of the
Company and Bank to remain with the Company, as
well as to provide these persons with a proprietary inter-
est in the Company. During the year ended June 30,
1997, the Bank contributed $10.8 million to the RRP,
which purchased 581,900 shares of the Company’s com-
mon stock in open market transactions. As of Jfie 30,
1998, all of the shares under the RRP have been awarded
to officers or directors of the Company or Bank. The
RRP shares vest on February 1st of each year over a
total period of five years. Shares become 100%- vested
in the event of death or disability of the participant, or
in the event of a “change of control” of the Company as
defined by the RRP. As of June 30, 1998 and 1997~

164,876 shares and 15,870 shares have vested under the
RRP, respectively. The Company recognized compensa-
tion expense of $2,708 and $1,175 during the years
ended June 30, 1998 and 1997, which related to the
earned portion of vested shares.

The Company continues to account for compensation
expense under the RRP under APB 25, measuring com-
pensation cost based upon the average acquisition value
of the RRP shares. Had the Company recorded compen-
sation expense under the fair value methodology encour-
aged under SFN 123, compensation expense would have
decreased by $601 and $315, respectively, for the years
ended June 30, 1998 and 1997, net income would have
increased $325 and $173 for the years ended June 30,
1998 and 1997, respectively, and basic and diluted earn-
ings per share would have increased by $0.03 and $0.02,
respectively, for the year ended June 30, 1998, and $0.01
and $0.01, respectively, for the year ended June-30, 1997.
The effects of applying SFAS 123 for disclosing compen-
sation cost may not be representative of the effect on
reported net income for future years.

Stock Option Plan — In November 1996, the Company
adopted the Dime Community Bancshares, Inc. 1996
Stock Option Plan for Outside Directors, Officers and
Employees (the “1996 Stock Option Plan”), which per-
mits the Company to grant up to 1,454,750 incentive or
non-qualified stock options to outside directors, oficers
and other employees of the Company or the Bank. The
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors
administers the Stock Option Plan and authorizes all
option grants.

On December 26, 1996,.1,393,425 stock options were
granted to outside directors, officers and certain
employees. All stock options granted under the 1996
Stock Option Plan expire on December 26, 2006. One-
fifth of the shares granted to participants under the
1996 Stock Option Plan become exercisable by partici-
pants on December 26, 1997, 1998, 1999, 2000-and
2001, respectively. Activity related to the Stock Option
Plan for the fiscal years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997
is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 1997
Options outstanding —

beginning of year 1,393,425
Options granted — 1,393,42<
Options exercised 3,600 —
Options forfeited 1,600 —
Options outstanding —

end of year 1,388,225 1,393,425
Remaining options available

for grant under the plan 62,925 61,325

The exercise price on all stock options granted under
the Plan was $14.50, which, under the terms of the Stock
0pti6n Plan, was equivalent to the fti market value of
the Company’s stock as of the close of business on the
grant date. At June 30, 1998 and 1997, respectively,
305,225 and 39,675 options are exercisable.
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The weighted average fair value per option at the
date of grant for stock options granted was estimated
to be $5.72 using the Binomial Option Pricing model
with the following assumptions:

FiscalYear EndedJune 30, 1998
Expected life (in years) 10
Interest rate 5.79%
Volatility 22.89
Dividend yield 1.40

The Company continues to account for Stock Options
under APB 25, accordingly no compensation cost has
been recognized. Had the Company recorded compensa-
tion expense under the fair value methodology encour-
aged under SFAS 123, compensation expense would
have increased by $1,063 and $532, respectively, for the
years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997, net income would
have decreased by $574 and $287, respectivel~ for the
years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997, both basic and
diluted earnings per share would have decreased by
$0.05 for the year ended June 30, 1998, and both basic
and diluted earnings would have decreased by $0.02
during the year ended June 30, 1997. The effects of
applying SFAS 123 for disclosing compensation cost
may not be representative of the effect on reported
net income for future years.

16. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Mortgage Loan Commitments and Lines of Credit —
At June 30, 1998 and 1997, the Bank had outstanding
commitments to make mortgage loans aggregating
approximately $158,042 and $115,076, respectively.

At June 30, 1998, commitments to originate freed rate
and adjustable rate mortgage loans were $62,904 and_
$95,138, respectively. Interest rates on fied rate commit-
ments ranged between 6.38% to 10.25%. Substantially all
of the Bank’s commitments will expire within two months.
A concentration risk exists with these commitments as vir-
tually all of the outstanding mortgage Ioan commitments
involve properties located within New York City.

The Bank had available at June 30, 1998 unused lines
of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York
totaling $100,000, expiring on September 11, 1998.

Lease Commitments — At June 30, 1998, aggregate
net minimum annual rental commitments on leases
are as follows:

Year Ended June 30, Amount
1999 $ 428
2000
2001

:449
__ .451

2002 - -399
2003 415
~ereafter 1,511

Net rental expense for the years ended June 30,
1998, 1997 and 1996 approximated $183, $197 and
$278, respectively.

Litigation — The Company and its subsidiary are subject
to certain pending and threatened legal actions which
tise out of the normal course of business. Management

believes that the resolution of any pending or threatened
litigation will not have a material adverse effect on the
financial condition or resdts of operations.

17. F~ VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The following disclosure of the estimated fair value of

financial instruments is made in accordance with the
requirements of Statement of Financial Standards
No. 107, “Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial
Instruments.” The estimated fair value amounts have
been determined by the Bank using available market
information and appropriate valuation methodologies.
However, considerable judgment is required to inter-
pret market data to develop the estimates of fair value.
Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not
necessarily indicative of the amounts the Bank could
realize in a current market exchange. The use of differ-
ent market assumptions andfor estimation methodolo-
gies may have a material effect on the estimated fair
value amounts.

Cash and Due from Banks — The fair value is assumed
to be equal to their carrying value as these amounts
are due upon demand.

Investment Securities and Mortgage-Backed Securities —
The fair value of these securities is based on quoted mar-
ket prices obtained from an independent pricing service.

Federal Funds Sold — The fair value of these assets,
principally overnight deposits, is assumed to be equal
to their carrying value due to their short maturity.

—.

Federal Home ban Bank ofNew York @.LB~) Stock —
The fair value of FHLBNY stock is assumed to be equal
to the carrying value as the stock is carried at par
value and redeemable at par value by the FHLBNY.

Loans and Loans Held for Sale — The fair value of
loans receivable is determined by utilizing either sec-
ondary market prices, or, to a greater extent, by dis-
counting the future cash flows, net of prepayments of
the loans using a rate for which similar loans would be
originated to new borrowers with similar terms. This
methodology is applied to all loans, inclusive of
impaired and non-accrual loans.

Deposits — The fair value of savings, money market,
NOW, Super NOW and checking accounts is assumed to
be their carrying amount. The fair value of certificates
of deposit is based upon the discounted value of contrac-
tual cash flows using current rates for instruments of
the same remaining maturity.

Escrow, “Other Deposits and Borrowed Funds — The
estimated fair value of escrow, other deposits and bor-
rowed funds is assumed to be the amount payable at
the reporting date.

Other Liabilities — The estimated fair value of other
liabilities, which primarily include trade accounts
payable, is assumed to be their carrying amount.
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Commitments to Extend Credit — The fair value of
commitments is estimated using the fees currently
charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into
account the remaining terms of the agreements and
the present creditworthiness of the counterparties. For
fixed-rate loan commitments, fair value also considers
the difference between current levels of interest rates
and the committed rates.

The estimated fair values of the Bank’s financial
instruments at June 30, 1998 and 1997 were as follows:

Carrying Fair
June 30, 1998 Amount Value
Assets:
Cash and due from banks $ = $16,266
Investment securities held-to-maturity 78,593
Investment securities available for sale S5;706 85,706
Mortgage-backedsecuritiesheld-to-maturity 46,714 47,443
Mortgage-backedsecuritiesavailable for sale 363,875 363,8’75
Loans and loans held for sale 93S,046 942,341
Federal funds sold 9,329 9,329
FHLB stock $10,754 $ 10,754
Liabilities:
Savings, money market, NOW,

Super NOW and checking accounts $=6 $426,014
Certificates of deposit 610,296
Escrow, other deposits and borrowed funds 375;501 375,501
Other liabilities 23,734 23,734
Off-balance sheet liability—

commitments to extend credit $ – $ (1,431)

Carrying Fair
June 30, 1997 Amount Value
Assets:
Caeh and due from banks $19,198 $19,198
Investment securities held-to-maturity 101,587 102,024
Investment securities available for sale 58,687 58:687
Mortgage-backedsecuritiesheld-to-maturity 78,388 79,075
Mortgage-backedsecuritiesavailablefor sale 230,137 230,137
Loans and loans held for sale 739,858 738Z958
Federal funds sold 18,902 18,902
FHLB etock $ 8,322 $ 8,322
Liabilities:
Savings, money market, NOW,

Super NOW and checking accounts $:;;,:;; $421;622
Certificates of deposit 540,319
Escrow, other deposits and borrowed funds 154;517 154,517
Other liabilities 6,225 6,225
Off-balance sheet l.iability—

commitments to extend credit $– $ (1,179)

18. TREASURY STOCK
The Company repurchased 919,837 shares and

1,454,750 shares of its common stock into treasuW-
during the fiscal years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997,
respectively. The average cost of all shares repur-
chased was $22.58 and $19.04, respectively, during the
years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997. All shares were
repurchased in accordance with applicable regulations
of the Office of Thrift Supervision and Securities and
Exchange Commission.

19. REGULATORY MATTERS
The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital

requirements administered by the federal banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital require-
ments can initiate certain mandatory—and possibly
additional discretionary-actions by regulators that, if

undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the
Bank’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy
guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt
corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital
guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the
Bank’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet
items as calculated under regulatory accounting prac-
tices. The Bank’s capital amounts and classification are
also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators
about components, risk weighings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures that have been established by
regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank
to maintain minimum capital amounts and ratios (set
forth in the table below). ‘The Bank’s primary regulato~
agency, the OTS, requires that the Bank maintain mini-
mum ratios of tangible capital (as defined in the regula-
tions) of 1.5%, core capital (as defined) of 3%, and total
risk-based capital (as defined) of 8Y0. The Bank is also
subject to prompt corrective action requirement regula-
tions set forth by the FDIC. These regulations require
the Bank to maintain minimum of Total and Tier I capi-
tal (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted
assets (as defined), and of Tier I capital (as defined) to
average assets (as defined). Management believes, as of
June 30, 1998, that the Bank meets all capital adequacy
requirements to which it is subject.

As of June 30, 1998, the most recent notification from
the OTS categorized the Bank as “well capitalized” under
the re@atory framework for prompt corrective action. To
be categorized as “well capitalized” the Bank must main-
tain minimum total risk-based, Tier I risk-based, Tier I
leverage ratios as set forth in the table. There are no con-
ditions or events since that notification that management
believes have changed the institution’s category.

ToBe Categorizedas
“WeUCapitalized”

For Capital UnderPrompt
Adeauacv CorrectiveAction

As ofJune 30,1998
Tangiblecapital:
Corecapital:
Totalrisk-based

Actual Pu~ose; Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

$131,186 8.32% $23,655 1.5% NfA NIA
131,186 8.32 47,309 3.0 NIA NIA

capital (to nsk-
weightedassets) 141,885 16.58 68,472 8.0 $85,590 10.00%

Tier I risk-based
capital (to risk-
weightedassets) 131,186 15.33 NIA NIA 51,354 6.00

TierI leveragecapital
(toaverageasseta) 131,186 9.06 NIA NIA 72,380 5.00

To Be Categorizedas
‘Well Capitalized”

For Capital UnderPrompt
Adequacy CorrectiveAction

Actual Purposes Provisions
ASofJune30, 1997 Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
Tangiblecapital: $124,118 9.86% $18,873 1.5% NIA NIA
Corecapital: 124,182 9.87 37,748 3.0 NIA NiA
Totalrisk-based

capital (to risk-
weightedassets) 132,465 19.99 53,009 8.0 $66,261 10.00%

Tier I risk-based
capital (to risk-
weightedassets) 124,182 18.74 N/A N/A 39,756 6.00

TierI leveragecapital
(b averageasseta) 124,182 10.35 N/A N/A 59,980 5.00
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me following is a reconciliation of generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) capital to re~atory capital
for the B*

At June30, 1668 1997
Riek- Risk-

Tanaible Core Based Tentible Core Based
Cafiital Capital Capital Ca~ital Capital Capital

GAAPcapiti $156,718$156,718$156,718 $152,198$152,198$152,198
Non-allowable

assek:
Coredeposit

intangible — — — (64) — —
Unre~zedgain

onavailable
forsale
securities (1,504) (1,504) (1,564) (1,583) (1,583) (1,583)

Goodwill (24,028) (24,028) (24,028) (26,433)(26,433)t26,433)
Generalwduation

allowance — — 10,699 — — 8,283
Ra@atorycapital131,186 131,166 141,885 124,118 124,182 132,465
kfIinimumcapital

requirement 23,655 47,309 68,472 18.873 37.748 53.009
Regulatorycapital

excess $107.531$83.877$73.413 $105.245$86.434$79.456

20. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The following represents the unaudited results of_

operations for each of the quarters during the fiscal
years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997.

21. CONDENSED PAR,ENT COMPANY O~Y
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company began operations on June 26, 1996.
The following statements of condition as of June 30,
1998 and 1997, and the related statements of opera-
tions and cash flows for the years ended June 30, 1998,
1997 and 1996 reflect the Company’s investment in its
wholly owned subsidiary, the Bank, using the equity
method of accounting

DIME COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF FINANCLALCONDITION
(Dollarein thousands,exceptshareamounts)

At June 30. 1998 1997

ASSETS:
Cashandduehornbanks $ 55 $ 17
Investmentsecuritiesavailableforsale 18,677 22,363
Federalfinds sold 1,291 6,040
ESOPloanto subsidiary 9,175 10,324
Investmentin subsidiary 156,718 152,198
Receivableforsecuritiessold 1.264 —
Other assets ’184 344
Total assets $187,364 $191,286

LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUI~

Otherliabilities $ 1,015 $ 397
Stockholders’eauitv 186.349 190.889

For the Three Sept. 30, Dec. 31, March 31, June 30,
Months Ended 1997 1997 1998 1998

‘Ibtal liabilitiesand atockkoldere’equity $187,364 $191,286

Net intereet income $12,026 $12,279 $12,459 $12,765
Provision for loan losses 525 525 525 60
Net interest income after

provision for loan loeses 11,501 11,754 11,934 12,705
Non-interest income 981 1,032 1,261 3,733
Non-interest exuense 6.746 6.860 7.063 9.268
Income before income taxes 5,736 5,926 6,132 7,170
Income tax expense 2,898 3,039 2,794 3,135
Net income $2,838 $2.887 $3.338 $4.035
Earnings per share (l):
Basic $0.25 $0.26 $0.31 $0.37
Diluted $0.23 $0.24 $0.28 $0.34

For the Three Sept. 30, Dec. 31, March 31, June 30,
Months Ended 1996 1996 1997 1997
Net interest income $11,165 $11,969 $12,116 $12,216
Provision for loan losses 1,050 1,050 1,050 1,050
Net interest income after

provision for loan losses 10,115 10,919 11,066 11,166
Non-interest income 757 1,052 781 ._ 1,543
Non-interest exDense 8.132 5.604 6.741 7.015
Incomebeforeincometaxes 2,740 6,367 5,106 .5,694
Income tax expense “1,516 1,428 1,608 3,039
Net income $1.224 $4.939 $3.498 $2.655”
Earningsper share (1}
Basic $0.09 $0.37 $0.26 $0.22
Diluted $0.09 $0.37 $0.26 $0.22
Supplemental disclosure:
SAIF special

assessmentcharge $2,032 $–$–$–
Incometax recovery — 1,848 1,034 -—
DilutedEPS excluding

SAIFepecialassessment
endincometaxrecoveries $0.17 $0.23 $0.19 $0.22

DIME COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts)

For the Ye_wEnded June 30, 1998 1997 1996
Interest income $2,041 $3,585 $ 27
Dividends received from Bank 13,000
Gain on sales of securities 521 G.=
Non-interest expense 481 446 —
Income before income taxes

and equity of undistributed
(overdistributed) earnings
of the Bank 15,081 3,150 27

Income tax ex~ense 935 1.487 —
Income before equity of

undistributed(overdietributed)
earnings of the Bank 14,146 1,663 27

Equity in (over distributed)
undistributed earnings
of the Bank (1) (1,048) 10,653 6,238

Net income $13,098 $12,316 $6,265

(1) The equity in overdistributed earnings of the Bank for the year
ended June 30, 1998, represents dividends paid to the Company
in excess of the Bank’s current year’s earnings.

(1) The quarterlyearningsper shareamounts,when added,may not
agreeto earningsper share reportedon the ConsolidatedStatement
of Operationsdue to differencesin the computedweightedaverage
shares outstendingas well as roundingdifferences.
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DIME COMMUNITY BANCSMES, INC.
CONDENSED STATE~NTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts)

For the Year Ended June 30, 199s 1997 1996
Cash flows from

Operating Activities:
Net income $13,098 $ 12,316$ 6,265
Adjustmentsto reconcilenet

incometo net cashprovided
by operatingactivities:

Equityin overdistributed
(undistributed)earnings
ofBank 1,048 (10,653) ‘(6,238)

Gainonsaleofinvestment
securitiesavailableforsale (520) (11) : –

Net accretionof discounton
investmentsecurities
availableforsale (291)

Decrease(Increaee)in
(1,130) —

otherassets 160 (321) (23)
Increasein receivablefor

securitiespurchased (1,264) – —
(Decrease)Increasein payable

forsecuritiespurchased —
(Decrease)Increasein

(33,994) 33,994

otherliabilities (71) (225) 241
Net cash(usedin)provided

by operatingactivities 12,160 (34,018) 34,239

Cash flows from
fnvesting Activities:

Decrease (Increase) in
federal funds sold 4,749 47,583 (53,623)

Proceeds from sale of
investment securities
available for sale 13,439 10,011 —

Proceeds from cane and
maturities of investment
securities available for sale 13,500 120,595 —

Purchases of investment
securities available for sale (20,940) (117,006) (33,994)

Principal repayments on
ESOP loan 911 1,165 97

Cash disbursed in purchase
of subsidiary stock — — (76,332)

Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities 11,659 62,348 (t&3j852)

Cash flows from
Financing Activities:

Net proceeds from issuance
of common stock — 129,730

Cash disbursedfor expensesrelated
to issuance of common stock — (190), –

Common stock issued for exercise
of Stock Options 52

Cash dividends paid
to stockholders (2,635) (537)

Purchase of treasury stock (20,767) (27,703) =
Purchase of common stock

by Benefit Maintenance Plan (431) – —
Net cash (used in) provided

by financing activities (23,781) (28,430) 1-O

Net (decrease) increase in cash
and due from banks 38 (loo) .117

Cash and due from banks.

22. PENDING ACQUISITION OF
FINANC~ BANCORP, INC. (UNAUDITED)

On July 18, 1998, the Company entered into the
Merger Agreement with Financial Bancorp, pursuant
to which Financial Bancorp will be merged into the
Company. The Merger Agreement provides that each
outstanding share of common stock, par value $0.01
per share, of Financial Bancorp (“Financial Bancorp
.Comon Stock”) will be converted into the right to
receive, at the election of the holder thereof, either
shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per share, of
the Company (“Company Common Stock”) or cash (the
“Merger consideration”);provided, howeve~ that 50% of
the total consideration to be paid to Financial Bancorp’s
shareholders shall consist of Company Common Stock
and 50% shall consist of cash. The Merger Consideration
will be calculated to produce a value of $40.50 per share
of Financial Bancorp Common Stock if the Company’s
average closing price for the ten day period ending ten
days prior to the anticipated closing of the Merger (the
“Average ClosingPrice”) is between $22.95 and $31.05.
If the Company’s Average Closing Price is greater than
$31.05 or less than $22.95, then the amount of the
Merger Consideration will be increased or decreased
as set forth in the Merger Agreement. If the Company
Common Stock has a market value during the pricing
period of less than or equal to $20.25, Financial Bancorp
has the right to terminate the Merger Agreement
unless the Company agrees to increase the per share
consideration to Financial Bancorp’s shareholders to at
least $38.12.

The Financial Acquisition is subject to (i) approval by
the shareholders of Financial Bancorp, (ii) approval of
the OTS and (iii) satisfaction or waiver of certain other
conditions. Financial Bancorp is a unitary savings bank
holding company for its wholly owned subsidiary,
Financial Federal, a federal savings bank. Financial
Bancorp’s assets, deposits, and stockholders’ equity
totaled $340,999, $229,027 and $28,730, respectively,
at June 30, 1998.

beginning of period ‘ 17 117 —
Cash and due from banks.

end of period $ 55 $ 17$ 117

40



Directors and Executive Officers
of the Company and Bank

Directors

Vincent F. Palagiano
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Oficer

Michael P. DeVine
President and Chief Operating Officer

Kenneth J. Mahon *
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Anthony Bergamo
Attorney acting as Independent Fiduciary

George L. Clark, Jr.
President of George L. Clark Inc. Realtors

Steven D. Cohn .
Managing partner at Goldberg and Cohn, Esq.

Patrick E. Curtin
Senior partner at Conway Farrell Curtin & Kelly,

Joseph H. Farrell
Chairman of Conway Farrell Curtin & Kelly, PC.

Fred P. Fehrenbach
President of Consolidated Brokerage Corp. and
BF International Corp.

John J. Flynn
Self employed real estate mortgage broker

.Malcolm T. Kitson

F! c.

Retired. Formerly a Vice President at Citibank, N.A.

Stanley Meisels
Stockbroker with Gruntal & Co. and President of
Small Business Electronics Investment Corp.

Louis V. Varone
Principal at Century 21 Lewis and Clark Realty

* J)ir~~t~rof the Bank only.

Executive O@c.ers

Timothy B. King
First Vice President and %easurer

Michael Pucella
First Vice President and Comptroller

Executive Officers of the Bank

Michael J. Henchy
First Vice President

Stephen Varriale
Vice President

Corporate Information

~ansfer Agent and Registrar
Inquiries regarding stockholder administration and
services should be directed to:

ChaseMellon Shareholder Services
~verpeck Centre
85 Challenger Road
Ridgefield Park, NJ 07660

Independent Auditors
Deloitte & Touche LLP
Two World Financial Center
New York, NY 10281

General Counsel
Conway Farrell Curtin & Kelly, P.C.
63 Wall Street
New York, NY 10005-3001

Special Counsel
Thacher Proffitt & Wood
Two World Trade Center
New York, NY 10048

Investor Relations
Inquiries regarding Dime Community Bancshares, Inc.
should be directed to:

Kenneth A. Ceomo
Dime Community Bancshares, Inc.
209 Havemeyer Street
Brooklyn, NY 11211

Annual Meeting of Shareholders
The Company’s Annual Meeting of Shareholders will
be held at 10 a.m. on November 12, 1998, at Giando
on the Water, 400 Kent Avenue, Brooklyn, New York,
Holders of common stock as of September 21, 1998
will be eligible to vote.

Annual Report on Form 1O-K
A copy of the Annual Report on Form 1O-K for
the year ended June 30, 1998 (without exhibits),
which was filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, is available without
charge upon request to:

Investor Relations
209 Havemeyer Street
Brooklyn, New York 11211

%-PPrinted on recycled paper



DIMECOMMUNITY
BANCSHARES,INC.

209 Havemeyer Street

Brooklyn, New York 11211


